Set # _____

City of Santa Fe, New Mexico



"REQUEST FOR BIDS"

BID # '16/10/B

FY 15/16 BISHOP'S LODGE RD., BROWNELL-HOWLAND RD., LUGAR DE MONTE VISTA WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT, CIP # 3049

BIDS DUE: October 15, 201 2:00 P.M. PURCHASING OFFICE CITY OF SANTA FE 2651 SIRINGO ROAD – BUILDING "H"

Contents

PRE-BID INFORMATION (SECTION 00010)	
DEBARRED OR SUSPENDED CONTRACTORS	
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS	
BID SCHEDULE	
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS (SECTION 00100)	
1.0 DEFINITIONS AND TERMS	
2.0 EXAMINATION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS AND SITE	
3.0 BIDDING DOCUMENTS	
4.0 BIDDING PROCEDURES	
5.0 CONSIDERATION OF BIDS	
6.0 POST-BID INFORMATION	
7.0 MINIMUM WAGE RATES	
8.0 OTHER INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	
9.0 STATE OF NEW MEXICO, DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCH	SOLUTIONS, LABOR RELATIONS,
PUBLIC WORKS BUREAU CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR	
INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS	
BID FORMS	
BID FORM (SECTION 00310)	
SUPPLEMENT TO BID FORMS	
LOCAL PREFERENCE CERTIFICATION FORM	
RESIDENT VETERANS PREFERENCE CERTIFICATION	
BID SECURITY FORM	
AGENT'S AFFIDAVIT	
SUBCONTRACTOR LISTING	
STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS	
NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER	
CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES	
CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OF	PORTUNITY 38
AGREEMENT FORMS	
"OFFICIAL NOTICE-TO-PROCEED"	
GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT	
TABLE OF ARTICLES	
12.1 CHANGE ORDERS	
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS	
EXHIBIT I – WAGE RATES AND LABOR ENFORCEMENT FUND REG	
Decision Date	
City of Santa Fe Water Division	82
Santa Fe	82
Sana re	
EXHIBIT II – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	
EXHIBIT II – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS EXHIBIT III – STANDARD PROJECT DETAILS	
EXHIBIT III – STANDARD PROJECT DETAILS EXHIBIT IV – CITY OF SANTA FE MINIMUM WAGE ORDINANCE INI	
EXHIBIT V – PLANS	

DIVISION O - BIDDING & CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

PRE-BID INFORMATION ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS INVITATION FOR BID INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS BID FORMS SUPPLEMENTS TO BID FORMS AGREEMENT FORMS BONDS, CERTIFICATES, AND NOTICES GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

PRE-BID INFORMATION (SECTION 00010)

PRE-BID INFORMATION

SECTION 00010

PRE-QUALIFICATION FORMS SECTION 00011

NA

DEBARRED OR SUSPENDED CONTRACTORS

SECTION 00012

A business (contractor, subcontractor, or supplier) that has either been debarred or suspended pursuant to the requirements of City Purchasing Manual or Section 13-1-177 through 13-1-180, and 13-4-17 NMSA 1978 as amended or City Purchasing provisions, shall not be permitted to do business with the City and shall not be considered for award of Contract during the period for which it is debarred or suspended.

CITY OF SANTA FE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

SEALED BIDS FOR:	INVITATION FOR BID NO. '16/10/B CIP PROJECT # 3049 FY 15/16 BISHOP'S LODGE RD., BROWNELL-HOWLAND RD., LUGAR DE MONTE VISTA WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT
TO BE OPENED AT:	PURCHASING OFFICE 2651 SIRINGO ROAD, BUILDING H SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87505 (505) 955-5711
TIME:	2:00 P.M. LOCAL PREVAILING TIME
DATE:	October 15, 2015

ADDRESSED TO:

CITY PURCHASING OFFICER CITY OF SANTA FE 2651 SIRINGO ROAD, BUILDING H SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87505

Bids will be received until the above time, then opened publicly at the Purchasing Director's office or other designated place, and read aloud. BIDS RECEIVED AFTER THE ABOVE TIME WILL BE RETURNED UNOPENED.

Bidding Documents may be obtained (purchased) at the Sangre De Cristo Water Division offices, located at 801 W. San Mateo Road, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505, upon **non-refundable** payment of \$20.00 for each complete set. No refunds will be made upon return of Bid Documents, the City encourages recycling. An electronic version of the document may be downloaded from the following web site: http://www.santafenm.gov/bids.aspx Please note that if you do download the Bid Document and do not notify the Water Division in writing, you risk not being notified of any changes or addenda. The City will not be responsible for any issues arising from missed communications due to downloaded Bid Documents.

Bidding documents are also available at the following plan rooms:

Builders News 3435 Princeton, NE Albuquerque, NM 87107 Construction Reporter 1609 Second, NW Albuquerque, NM 87102 F. W. Dodge 1615 University Blvd., NE, Ste. 1 Albuquerque, NM 87102

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

BID NO. '16/10/B

Bids for the Contract will be presented in the form of a unit price bid. The bidder shall bid all items listed. Award will be made to the responsible bidder providing the lowest total base bid. Bidder shall include in the signed documents their license(s) and classification(s).

Bid security, made payable to the City of Santa Fe, the "Owner", in the amount of 5% of the proposal sum shall be submitted with the Bid. Bid security shall be in the form of a Bid Bond issued by Surety licensed to conduct business in the State of New Mexico, or by certified check. The successful Bidder's security shall be retained by the Owner until the Contract is signed; the other Bidders' security shall be returned as soon as practicable. Failure or refusal by the successful Bidder to enter into Contract with the Owner will constitute Liquidated Damages in favor of the Owner. The bid shall also include a signed "Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidders", signed "Certificate of Non-Segregated Facilities", a signed "Certificate of Bidder Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity", a Subcontractor's Listing and; if applicable, a Local Preference Application. The project is subject to the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions, Minimum Wage Rates for the State of New Mexico. Such wage rates are bound into the Contract Documents. The successful Bidder shall, upon notice of award of contract, secure from each of his Subcontractors a signed 'Non-Collusion Affidavit of Subcontractors".

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive technicalities, and to accept the Bid it deems to be in the best interest of the City of Santa Fe.

Contracting services are required for the City of Santa Fe Project, Bishop's Lodge Rd., Brownell-Howland Rd., Lugar De Monte Vista Water Replacement Project. The work consists of, but is not limited to complete in place installation of approximately 410-feet of 4-inch water main, 1180- feet of 6-inch water main, 2130-feet of 8-inch water main including water valves, valve boxes, fire hydrant removals with all appurtenances and road restoration, in accordance with the drawings, specifications, and other contract documents. The locations of the project are Bishop's Lodge Road between Stagecoach Dr. and Hillcrest Dr., Brownell-Howland and Terral Rd., and Lugar de Monte Vista west of Galisteo St..

Contractor shall be responsible for any and all permits, fees, and State and City inspections associated with the construction.

The City of Santa Fe is an Equal Opportunity Employer and all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation or national origin. The successful Bidder will be required to conform to the Equal Opportunity Employment Regulations.

Bids will be received by the City of Santa Fe and will be delivered to City of Santa Fe, Purchasing Office, 2651 Siringo Road, Bldg. H Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505 until 2:00 P.M. local prevailing time, October 15, 2015. Any bid received after this deadline will not be considered.

ATTEST:

Robert Roderte, Purchasing Officer

City of Santa Fe, New Mexico

Received by the Santa Fe New Mexican on: 09/23/15 To be published on: 10/01/15

Received by the Albuquerque Journal on: 09/23/15 To be published on: 10/01/15

BID SCHEDULE

- 1) ADVERTISEMENT:
- 2) ISSUANCE OF BID PACKET:
- 3) BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE:
- 4) OPENINGS OF BIDS RECEIVED:

October 1, 2015

October 1, 2015

October 15, 2015

October 15, 2015 2:00 PM local prevailing time City of Santa Fe – Purchasing Division 2651 Siringo Road, Bldg. H Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505 (505) 955-5711

5) RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD:

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE: FINANCE COMMITTEE: CITY COUNCIL: November 4, 2015 November 30, 2015 December 9, 2015

DATES OF CONSIDERATION BY PUBLIC WORKS/CIP AND LAND USE COMMITTEE, FINANCE COMMITTEE AND CITY COUNCIL ARE TENTATIVE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE.

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS (SECTION 00100)

1.0 DEFINITIONS AND TERMS

1.1 Terms used in these Bidding Documents which are defined in the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary, and other conditions) have the meanings assigned to them in those Conditions.

2.0 EXAMINATION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS AND SITE

- 2.1 Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder must (a) examine the Bidding Documents thoroughly, (b) visit the site to familiarize himself with local conditions that may in any manner affect cost, progress, or performance of the work, (c) familiarize himself with Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations that may in any manner effect cost, progress, or performance of the work, and (d) study and carefully correlate the Bidder's observations with the Bidding Documents.
- 2.2 On request, the City of Santa Fe, the "Owner", will provide each Bidder access to the site to conduct such investigations and tests as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of his Bid.
- 2.3 The lands upon which the work is to be performed, rights-of-way for access thereto, and other lands designated for use by the Contractor in performing the work are identified in the Bidding Documents.
- 2.4 The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by the Bidder that he has complied with every requirement of this Section and that the Bidding Documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance of the work.

3.0 BIDDING DOCUMENTS

3.1 COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS

- 3.1.1 Complete sets of the Bidding Documents in the number and for the deposit sum, if any, stated in the Invitation may be obtained from the Owner (unless another issuing office is designated in the Invitation for Bid). The deposit, if any, will be refunded to Bidders who submit a bona fide Bid and return the Bidding Documents in good and complete condition within ten (10) calendar days after opening of Bids.
- 3.1.2 Complete sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids; the Owner assumes no responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.
- 3.1.3 The Owner, in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms, does so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids on the work and does not confer a license or grant for any other use.

3.2 INTERPRETATIONS

3.2.1 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Bidding Documents shall be submitted to the Purchasing Officer in writing. Replies will be issued by Addenda provided to all parties recorded by the Owner as having received the Bidding Documents. Questions received less than seven days prior to the date for opening of Bids will not be answered. Only questions answered by formal written Addenda will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.

3.3 SUBSTITUTE MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

The Contract, if awarded, will be on the basis of material and equipment described in the Drawings or specified in the Specifications without consideration of possible substitute of "or-equal" items. Whenever it is indicated in the Drawings or specified in the Specifications that substitute an "or-equal" item of material or equipment may be furnished or used by the Contractor if acceptable to the Owner, application for such acceptance will not be considered by the Owner until after the "effective date of the Contract." Application to utilize substitute material or equipment shall be made to the Owner's Representative in writing, stating the request and the justification. If the substitution is accepted, the agreement between Contractor and Owner shall be documented in writing.

3.4 ADDENDA

- 3.4.1 Addenda will be provided to all who are known by the Owner to have received a complete set of Bidding Documents.
- 3.4.2 Copies of Addenda will be made available for inspection wherever Bidding Documents are on file for that purpose.
- 3.4.3 No Addenda will be issued later than four days prior to the date for receipt of Bids, except an addendum with drawings or Request for Bids or one which includes postponement for the date for receipt of Bids.
- 3.4.4 Each Bidder shall ascertain, prior to submitting the Bid, that the Bidder has received all Addenda issued, and shall acknowledge their receipt in the Bid.
- 3.4.5 The City reserves the right to not comply with these time frames if a critical addendum is required or if the proposal deadline needs to be extended due to a critical reason in the best interest of the City of Santa Fe.

4.0 BIDDING PROCEDURES

The person or persons opening the bids will adhere to the following procedure and check for the following:

- 4.0.1 Bid Name of the Bidder and the Number of the Bidder's New Mexico Contractor's License with a check for proper signatures.
- 4.0.2 Bid Bond.
- 4.0.3 Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder.
- 4.0.4 Submittal, acknowledgement of Addenda, if any.
- 4.0.5 Properly executed Bid Form.
- 4.0.6 Certification of Equal Employment Opportunity
- 4.0.7 Certification of Non-segregated Facilities.
- 4.0.8 Subcontractor's Listing (as applicable).
- 4.0.9 Bidder's Qualifications Form

TWO COMPLETE COPIES OF THE BID SUBMITTAL ARE REQUIRED

If any of the above requirements have not been met, the bid shall be disqualified and considered a non-responsive bid. Any disqualified bids will not be read.

4.1 FORM AND STYLE OF BIDS

- 4.1.1 Bids shall be submitted on forms identical to the form included with the Bidding Documents.
- 4.1.2 All blanks on the Bid Form shall be filled in by typewriter or manually in ink.
- 4.1.3 Where so indicated by the makeup of the Bid Form, sums shall be expressed in both words and figures, and, in case of discrepancy between the two, the amount written in words shall govern.
- 4.1.4 Any interlineations, alteration, or erasure must be initialed by the signer of the Bid.
- 4.1.5 All requested Additive or Deductive Alternate Bids shall be Bid. If no change in the Base Bid is required, enter "No Change."
- 4.1.6 Where there are two or more major items of work (identified as "Bid Lots") for which separate quotations are requested, the Bidder may, at his discretion, submit quotations for any or all items, unless otherwise specified. Additionally, the Bidder may submit a lump sum price for all lots for which the Bidder has submitted separate quotations.
- 4.1.7 Each copy of the Bid shall include the complete name of the Bidder and a statement that the Bidder is an individual, a sole proprietor, a partnership, a corporation or joint venture. The Bid shall be signed by the person or persons legally authorized to bind the Bidder to a contract. A Bid by a corporation shall bind the Bidder to a contract. A Bid by a corporation shall bind the Bidder to a contract. A Bid by a corporation and have the applicable New Mexico Certificate of Incorporation number or Certificate of Authority number. The Bid shall include the current Contractor's license number and type, and the current Contractor's preference number. A Bid submitted by an agent shall have a current Power of Attorney attached certifying the agent's authority to bind the Bidder.
- 4.1.8 The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda (the numbers of which shall be filled in on the Bid Form).
- 4.1.9 The address, to which communications regarding the Bid are to be directed, must be shown.

4.2 BID SECURITY

- 4.2.1 Bid security in an amount equal to at least 5% of the amount of the Bid shall be a bond provided by a Surety company authorized to do business in this State, or the equivalent in the form of a certified check, or otherwise supplied in a form satisfactory to the Owner. All Bonds shall be executed by such sureties as are named in the current list of Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies.
- 4.2.2 The Bid security shall be in the amount of five percent (5%) of the highest Bid amount submitted, unless otherwise stipulated, pledging that the Bidder will enter into a Contract with the Owner in the terms stated herein and will furnish bonds covering the faithful performance of the Contract and payment of all obligations arising there under. Should the Bidder refuse to enter into such Contract or fail to furnish such bonds, the amount of the Bid security shall be forfeited to the Owner as liquidated damages, not as a penalty.
- 4.2.3 The Owner will have the right to retain the Bid security of Bidders to whom an award is being considered until either (a) the Contract has been executed and bonds have been furnished, or (b) the specified time has elapsed so that Bids may be withdrawn, or (c) all Bids have been rejected.
- 4.2.4 When the Bidding Documents require Bid security, noncompliance by the Bidder requires that the Bid be rejected.

4.2.5 If a Bidder is permitted to withdraw his Bid before award, no action shall take place against the Bidder or the Bid security.

4.3 PRE-BID CONFERENCE

- 4.3.1 The Owner of Record shall conduct a Pre-Bid Conference approximately twelve (12) calendar days prior to the Bid opening date stated in the Invitation for Bid.
- 4.3.2 The Owner of Record and his consultants, as applicable, shall be represented. Prospective Bidders and Prospective Subcontractors should ask questions regarding substitutions and/or request clarification of the Bidding Documents. The failure of a Bidder, Subcontractor, or Vendor to attend shall be interpreted to mean that the Bid Documents are clear and acceptable to all non-participants at the Pre-Bid Conference. Such clarity and acceptability shall be presumed with respect to all Bidders.
- 4.3.3 Questions and requests for clarification are to be presented in written form. Responses will be written and issued as Addenda. No verbal response shall be binding.

4.4 RESIDENT PREFERENCE & LOCAL PREFERENCE & RESIDENT VETERANS PREFERENCE

INTENT AND POLICY

The City of Santa Fe recognizes that the intent of the state resident preference statute is to give New Mexico businesses and contractors an advantage over those businesses, manufacturers and contractors from outside the State of New Mexico. The underlying policy is to give a preference to those persons and companies who contribute to the economy of the State of New Mexico by maintaining businesses and other facilities within the state and giving employment to residents of the state (1969 OP. Att'y Gen. No. 69-42). The City also has adopted a policy to include a local preference to those persons and companies who contribute to the economy of the County of Santa Fe by maintaining businesses and other facilities within the county and giving employment to residents of the county.

APPLICATION-IN-STATE AND OUT OF STATE BIDDERS

With acknowledgment of this intent and policy, the preference will only be applied when bids are received from instate and county businesses, manufacturers and contractors that are within 5% of low bids received from out-of-state businesses, manufacturers and contractors (13-1-21 (A) -1-21 (F) and 13-4-2 (C) NMSA 1978).

To be considered a resident for application of the preference, the in-state bidder must have included a valid state purchasing certification number with the submitted bid.

Thus it is recommended that in-state bidders obtain a state purchasing certification number and use it on all bids, in order to have the preference applied to their advantage, in the event an out-of-state bid is submitted. In submitting a bid, it should never be assumed that an out-of-state bid will not be submitted.

For information on obtaining a state purchasing certification number, the potential bidder should contact the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department.

All resident preferences shall be verified through the State Purchasing Office. Applications for resident preference not confirmed by the state Taxation and Revenue Office will be rejected. The certification must be under the bidder's business name submitting the bid.

NON-APPLICATION-COMPETING IN-STATE BIDDERS

If the lowest responsive bid and the next responsive bids within 5% of the lowest bid, are all from the state of New Mexico, then the resident preference will not be applied and the state purchasing certification number will not be considered. To be considered an in-state bidder in this situation, the bidders must meet the definition criteria of Chapter 13-1-21 (A)(1) and Chapter 13-4-2 (A) NMSA 1978. After examining the information included in the bid submitted, the city Purchasing Director may seek additional information of proof to verify that the business is a valid New Mexico business. If it is determined by the city Purchasing Director that the information is not factual and the

low responsive bid is actually an out-of-state bidder and not a New Mexico business, then the procedures in the previous section may be applied.

If the bidder has met the above criteria, the low responsive "resident" bid shall be multiplied by .95. If that amount is then lower than the low responsive bid of a "non-resident" bidder, the award will be based taking into consideration the resident preference of 5%.

APPLICATION FOR LOCAL PREFERENCE

For the purposes of this section, the terms resident business and resident manufacturer shall be defined as set out in Section 13-1-21 NMSA 1978; the term local as applied to a business or manufacturer shall mean:

Principal Office and location must be stated: To qualify for the local preference, the principal place of business of the enterprise must be physically located within the Santa Fe County Geographic Boundaries. The business location inserted on the Form must be a physical location, street address or such. DO NOT use a post office box or other postal address. Principal place of business must have been established no less than six months preceding application for certification.

The PREFERENCE FACTOR for resident and local preferences applied to bids shall be .95 for resident and .90 for local. The local preference for proposals shall be 1.10.

<u>New Mexico Resident Veteran Business Preference.</u> New Mexico law, Section 13-1-22 NMSA 1978, provides a preference in the award of a public works contract for a "resident veteran business". Certification by the NM Department of Taxation and Revenue for the resident veteran business requires the Offeror to provide evidence of annual revenue and other evidence of veteran status.

An Offeror who wants the veteran business preference to be applied to its proposal is required to submit with its proposal the certification from the NM Department of Taxation and Revenue and the sworn affidavit.

If an Offeror submits with its proposal a copy of a valid and current veteran resident business certificate, 7%, 8%, or 10% of the total weight of all the evaluation factors used in the evaluation of proposal may be awarded.

The local preference or resident business preference is not cumulative with the resident veteran business preference.

<u>Bids for Goods and Services.</u> When bids for the purchase of goods or services pursuant to Section 22 are received, the lowest responsive bid received from those bidders in the first category listed below shall be multiplied by the Preference Factor. If the resulting price of that bid receiving the preference is lower than or equal to the lowest bid of all bids received, the contract shall be awarded to that bidder receiving the preference. If no bids are received from bidders in the first category, or if the bid receiving the preference does not qualify for an award after multiplication by the Preference Factor, the same procedure shall be followed with respect to the next category of bidders listed to determine if the bid qualifies for award. The priority of categories of bidders is:

- (1) Local business.
- (2) Resident business.

<u>Proposals for Goods and Services.</u> When proposals for the purchase of goods or services pursuant to Section 23 are received, the evaluation score of the proposal receiving the highest score of all proposals from those proponents in the first category listed above shall be multiplied by the Preference Factor. If the resulting score of that proposal receiving the preference is higher than or equal to the highest score of all proposals received, the contract shall be recommended to that proponent receiving the preference. If no proposals are received from proponents in the first category, or if the proposal receiving the preference does not qualify for an award after multiplication by the Preference Factor, the same procedure shall be followed with respect to the next category of proposals listed to determine if a proponent qualifies for award.

<u>Qualifications for Resident Preference</u>. No resident business or manufacturer, as defined, shall be given any preference in the awarding of contracts for furnishing goods or services to the city, unless it shall have qualified with the State Purchasing Agent as a resident business or manufacturer and obtained a certification number as provided in Section 13-

1-22 NMSA 1978. The certification number must be submitted with its bid for an offeror to qualify for this preference. The Central Purchasing Office shall determine if a resident preference is applicable to a particular offer on a case by case basis.

<u>Qualifications for Local Preference</u>. The Central Purchasing Office shall have available a form to be completed by all bidders/proponents who desire to apply for the local preference as a local business. The completed form with the information certified by the offeror must be submitted by the bidders/proponents with their bid or proposal to qualify for this preference.

<u>Limitation</u>. No offeror shall receive more than a 5% for resident and 10% for local preference pursuant to this section on any one offer submitted. A bidder may not claim cumulative preferences.

<u>Application</u>. This section shall not apply to any purchase of goods or services when the expenditure of federal and/or state funds designated for a specific purchase is involved and the award requirements of the funding prohibit resident and/or local preference(s). This shall be determined in writing by the department with the grant requirements attached to the Purchasing Office before the bid or request for proposals is issued.

Exception. The City Council at their discretion can approve waiving the Local Preference requirements for specific projects or on a case by case basis if it is the City's best interest to do so.

New Mexico Resident Preference Number (if applicable)_____

4.5 SUBCONTRACTORS

4.5.1 The threshold amount for this project is \$5,000.00. The General Contractor must list all Subcontractors who will perform work in excess of this threshold. Only one Subcontractor may be listed for each category as defined by the Contractor. The Subcontractor Fair Practice Act (13-4-31 through 13-4-43 NMSA 1978) shall apply.

The Bidder shall list the Subcontractors or material suppliers he proposes to use for all trades or items on the Subcontractor Listing Form attached to the Bidding Document. If awarded the contract, the Bidder shall use the firm listed, or himself if "General Contractor" has been listed, unless a request for a change or substitution is approved by the Owner for any reason as outlined herein.

- 4.5.2 The Owner shall consider any request for a change in the listed forms if the Bidder can furnish evidence of being able to perform the work in a manner more satisfactory and beneficial to both the Owner and the Bidder by not using the listed subcontractor. Satisfactory reasons for a substitution may include the inability to bond or lack of evidence of being able to furnish acceptable materials on schedule. Also, if the Bidder has made a legitimate error in listing a low Subcontractor, a request for substitution, made after the Bid Opening with the Owner's approval, will be considered. The proof of error must be conclusive, based upon the approval of said evidence by the listed Subcontractor or material supplier and/or any other confirmation satisfactory to the Owner.
- 4.5.3 The Bidder shall not list himself as the supplier or as the Subcontractor for any trade unless he has previously performed work of this type or can prove to the Owner's satisfaction that he actually has or will obtain, fully adequate facilities and plans to perform the work with his own forces.
- 4.5.4 Omission or non-compliance with the intent of the Subcontractor Listing will be grounds for considering a Bid as non-responsive.
- 4.5.5 Prior to the award of the Contract, the Owner will notify the Bidder in writing if, after due investigation and written findings of fact, the Owner has reasonable and substantial objection to any person or organization on such list and refuses in writing to accept such person or organization, the Bidder may, at his option, (1) withdraw his Bid, or (2) submit an acceptable substitute Subcontractor with no increase in his Bid Price. In the event of withdrawal under this paragraph, Bid security will not be forfeited.

- 4.5.6 The successful Bidder shall, within seven (7) calendar days of notification of selection for the award of Contract for the work, submit the following information to the Owner:
 - (A) A signed list of the proprietary names and the suppliers of principal items or systems of materials and equipment proposed for the work; and
 - (B) A list signed by all Subcontractors proposed for the principal portions of the work in accordance with the Subcontractors Listing Form submitted with the Bid.
- 4.5.7 The successful Bidder will be required to establish to the satisfaction of the Owner the reliability and responsibility of the persons or entities proposed to furnish and perform the work described in the Bidding Documents.
- 4.5.8 Persons and organizations proposed by the Bidder and to whom the Owner has made no reasonable objection under the provisions of Paragraph 4.5.5 must be used on the work for which they were proposed and shall not be changed except with the written consent of the Owner.
- 4.5.9 No successful Bidder shall be required to employ any Subcontractor, other person, or organization against whom he has reasonable objection.

4.6 SUBMISSION OF BIDS

- 4.6.1 Bids shall be submitted at the time and place indicated in the Invitation for Bid and shall be submitted in a sealed envelope marked with the Project title and name and address of the Bidder, New Mexico License # ______, and accompanied by the Bid Security, Subcontractors Listing, and other required documents listed in the Bid Documents.
- 4.6.2 The envelope shall be addressed to:

Purchasing Officer City of Santa Fe 2651 Siringo Road, Building H Santa Fe, NM 87505

The following information shall be provided on the front of the Bid envelope: Invitation for Bid number, date of opening, time of opening, and New Mexico License Number. If the Bid is sent by mail, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate mailing envelope with the notation "SEALED BIDS ENCLOSED" on the face thereof.

- 4.6.3 Bids received after the date and time for receipt of Bids will be returned unopened.
- 4.6.4 The Bidder shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery of Bids at the office of the City's Purchasing Division, including those Bids submitted by mail. Hand-delivered Bids shall be submitted at the front desk of the City Purchasing Division and will be clocked in at the time received, which must be prior to the time specified. Bids will then be held for public opening.
- 4.6.5 Oral, telephonic, or telegraphic Bids are invalid and will not receive consideration.

4.7 CORRECTION OR WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

- 4.7.1 A Bid containing a mistake discovered before Bid Opening may be modified or withdrawn by a Bidder prior to the time set for Bid Opening by delivering written or telegraphic notice to the location designated in the Invitation for Bid as the place where Bids are to be received.
- 4.7.2 Bid security, if required, shall be in an amount sufficient for the Bid as modified or resubmitted in conformance with Section 4.2.

- 4.7.3 Withdrawn Bids may be resubmitted up to the time and date designated for the receipt of Bids, provided they are then fully in conformance with the Bid Documents.
- 4.7.4 After Bid Opening, no modifications in Bid prices or other provisions of Bids shall be permitted. A low Bidder alleging a material mistake of fact which makes his Bid non-responsive may be permitted to withdraw his Bid if:
 - (A) The mistake is clearly evident on the face of the Bid document; or
 - (B) The Bidder submits evidence which clearly and convincingly demonstrates that a mistake was made.

Any decision by the Owner to permit or deny the withdrawal of a Bid on the basis of a mistake contained therein shall be supported by a determination setting forth the grounds for the decision. If withdrawal is permitted, Bid security will not be forfeited.

4.8 NOTICE OF CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS BINDING ON BIDDER

- 4.8.1 In submitting this Bid, the Bidder represents that he has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the following requirements of the Conditions of the Construction Contract (General, Supplementary, and Other Conditions).
 - (A) Definitions General Conditions, Sections 1.1 to 16.1;
 - (B) Supplementary Conditions, Sections 1.0 to 1.17;
 - (C) Bribes, Gratuities, and Kickbacks Supplementary Conditions, Section 4.0;
 - (D) Contract Bond Requirements Supplementary Conditions, Section 6.0
 - (E) Equal Employment Opportunity Labor Standards Provisions and other listed within the Contract Documents.

4.9 **REJECTION OR CANCELLATION OF BIDS**

4.9.1 An Invitation for Bid may be canceled, or any or all Bids may be rejected in whole or in part, when it is in the best interest of the Owner. A determination containing the reasons shall be made part of the Project file. Bid security for rejected Bids shall be returned to the Bidder.

4.10 PROTESTS

- 4.10.1 Any Bidder, Offeror, or Contractor who is aggrieved in connection with this procurement (Bid) may protest to the City Purchasing Agent and the Owner in accordance with the requirements. The protest should be made in writing within twenty-four (24) hours after the facts or occurrences giving rise thereto, but in no case more than within fifteen (15) calendar days after the facts or occurrences giving rise thereto.
- 4.10.2 The complete procedures and requirements regarding protest are available from the Purchasing Office upon request.

4.11 COMPETITIVE SEALED BIDS

4.11.1 Contracts solicited by competitive sealed Bids shall require that the base Bid amount exclude the applicable state gross receipts taxes or applicable local option taxes, but that the contracting agency shall be required to pay the applicable taxes including any increase in the applicable tax which becomes effective after the date the Contract is entered into. The applicable gross receipts taxes or local option taxes shall be shown as a separate amount on each billing or request for payment made under the contract.

5.0 CONSIDERATION OF BIDS

5.1 RECEIPT, OPENING, AND RECORDING

5.1.1 Bids received on time will be opened publicly and will be read aloud, and an abstract of the amounts of the Base Bids and Alternates or Bid items, if any, will be made available to the Bidders. Each Bid shall be open to public inspection. The Owner shall have the right to waive any informalities or irregularities in any Bid or Bids received and to accept the Bid or Bids which are in the Owner's best interest.

5.2 BID EVALUATION AND AWARD

- 5.2.1 It is the intent of the Owner to award a Contract to the responsible Bidder submitting the lowest base bid provided the Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents and does not exceed the funds available. The unreasonable failure of a Bidder to promptly supply information in connection with an inquiry with respect to responsibility is grounds for a determination that the Bidder is not a responsible Bidder.
- 5.2.2 Discrepancies in the Bid Form between words and figures will be resolved in favor of words. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum.

5.3 NOTICE OF AWARD

A written Notice of Award shall be issued by the Owner after review and approval of the Bid and related documents by the Governing Authority, "as defined in the Supplementary Conditions", with reasonable promptness.

5.4 IDENTICAL BIDS

- 5.4.1 When two or more of the Bids submitted are identical in price and are the low Bid, the City Purchasing Agent or the Owner may:
 - (A) Award pursuant to the identical low bid provisions of the City Purchasing Manual;
 - (B) Award to a resident local business if the identical low Bids are submitted by a resident or local business and a non-resident business;
 - (C) Award to resident or local manufacturer if the identical low Bids are submitted by a resident or local manufacturer and a resident business;
 - (D) Award by lottery to one of the identical low Bidders; or
 - (E) Reject all Bids and re-solicit Bids or proposals for the required services, construction, or items of tangible personal property.

5.5 CANCELLATION OF AWARD

5.5.1 When in the best interest of the public, the Owner may cancel the award of any Contract at any time before the execution of said Contract by all parties without any liability against the Owner.

6.0 POST-BID INFORMATION

6.1 **RETURN OF BID SECURITY**

All Bid security in the form of checks, except those of the two lowest Bidders, will be returned immediately following the opening and checking of the Bids. The retained Bid security of the unsuccessful of the two lowest Bidders, if in the form of a check, will be returned within fifteen (15) days following the award of contract. The retained Bid security of the successful Bidder, if in the form of a check, will be returned after a satisfactory Contract bond has been furnished and the Contract has

been executed. Bid securities in the form of Bid bonds will be returned only upon the request of the unsuccessful Bidder, but will be released by the City Purchasing Agent after the Notice of Award is sent by the Owner.

6.2 NOTICE TO PROCEED

The Owner will issue a written Notice to Proceed to the Contractor stipulating the date from which Contract Time will be charged and the date Contract Time is to expire, subject to valid modifications of the Contract authorized by Change Order.

6.3 FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT

Failure to return the signed Contract with acceptable Contract Bonds and Certificate of Insurance within fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of the Notice of Award shall be just cause for the cancellation of the award and the forfeiture of the Bid security, which shall become damages sustained. Award may then be made to the next lowest responsible Bidder, or the work may be re-advertised and constructed under Contract or otherwise, as the Owner may decide.

6.4 CONTRACTOR'S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

Bidders to whom award of a Contract is under consideration shall submit information and data to prove that their financial resources, production or service facilities, personnel and service reputation and experience are adequate to make satisfactory delivery of the services, construction, or items of personal property described in the Bid Documents and form of Statement of Bidder's Qualifications.

6.5 CONTRACT BONDS REQUIREMENTS

6.5.1 The successful Bidder, where the Contract price exceeds twenty five thousand dollars (\$25,000.00), shall post a one hundred percent (100%) Performance Bond and one hundred percent (100%) Labor and Material Payment Bond. Bonds shall be executed on Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond forms attached hereto, with amount payable conforming to the terms of the Contract. Surety shall be a company licensed to do business in the State of New Mexico and acceptable to the Owner.

6.6 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 6.6.1 The selected Bidder shall purchase and maintain, in a company or companies licensed to do business in the State of New Mexico, Liability and Property Insurance as required by law.
- 6.6.2 The insurance shall be in limits not less than those stated in the General Conditions, enclosed in the Bid package, or greater if required by law.
- 6.6.3 The insurance coverage shall include worker's compensation, employers liability, comprehensive general liability (Premises Operations, independent contractual liability, explosion and collapse hazard, underground hazard, personal injury), Comprehensive automobile liability (owned and hired), excess liability (umbrella form), and all-risk builder's risk.
- 6.6.4 All insurance coverage must be maintained for the entire life of the project. Products and completed operations coverage shall be maintained for a minimum period of one (1) year after final payment.
- 6.6.5 A valid certificate of insurance must be submitted to the Owner prior to issuance of a Notice-to-Proceed.

7.0 MINIMUM WAGE RATES

7.1 Pursuant to the requirements of any Contract entered into in excess of sixty thousand dollars (\$60,000) for construction, alteration, demolition, or repair, or any combination of these, including painting and decorating of public buildings or public works, Contract may be subject to the minimum wage rate determination issued by the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions for this project.

7.2 COMPLIANCE WITH CITY'S MINIMUM WAGE RATE ORDINANCE (LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE)

A copy of the City of Santa Fe Ordinance No. 2003-8, passed by the Santa Fe City Council on February 26, 2003 is attached. The proponent or bidder will be required to submit the proposal or bid such that it complies with the ordinance to the extent applicable. The recommended Contractor will be required to comply with the ordinance to the extent applicable, as well as any subsequent changes to the Ordinance throughout the term of this contract. This project is subject to Determination **SF-15-1304 A**.

8.0 OTHER INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

- 8.1 The Owner will make copies of available reports available to any Bidder requesting them. These reports are not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, nor are they part of the Bidding Documents. Before submitting his Bid, each Bidder shall, at his own expense, make such additional investigations and tests as the Bidder may deem necessary to determine his Bid for performance of the work in accordance with the time, price, and other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.
- 8.2 It shall be the responsibility of the successful Bidder to secure from the New Mexico Regulations & Licensing Department, Construction Industries Division (CID) such permits or licenses required to carry out the construction. The City will also be responsible for the inspection of all work during construction and to issue a Certificate of Occupancy upon completion and acceptance of the construction by the City of Santa Fe.

9.0 STATE OF NEW MEXICO, DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS, LABOR RELATIONS, PUBLIC WORKS BUREAU CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR REGISTRATION

9.1 A contractor or subcontractor that submits a bid valued at more than fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) for a city project that is subject to the Public Works Minimum Wage Act (13-4-10 NMSA 1978) shall be registered with the State of New Mexico, Department of Workforce Solutions, Labor Relations, Public Works Bureau. The registration number shall be provided in the bid submitted for the Contractor in the space provided and for subcontractors with work proposed over \$50,000 on the subcontractor form. After the bid opening, the registration number(s) will be verified by the City and the Bid will be determined to be non-responsive and disqualified if the registration number(s) appear to be not valid and the Contractor does not provide proof of the required registration for itself or its subcontractors with work proposed over fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000). It is the responsibility of the Contractor and the Subcontractor to ensure that the registration is completed prior to the Bid Opening.

INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS

(SECTION 00200)

INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS

Notice-to-Proceed	
Initial Construction Time	

March, 2016 105 Calendar Days

Contracting services are required for the City of Santa Fe Project, Bishop's Lodge Rd., Brownell-Howland Rd., Lugar De Monte Vista Water Replacement Project. The work consists of, but is not limited to complete in place installation of approximately 410-feet of 4-inch water main, 1180- feet of 6-inch water main, 2130-feet of 8-inch water main including water valves, valve boxes, fire hydrant removals with all appurtenances and road restoration, in accordance with the drawings, specifications, and other contract documents. The locations of the project are Bishop's Lodge Road between Stagecoach Dr. and Hillcrest Dr., Brownell-Howland and Terral Rd., and Lugar de Monte Vista west of Galisteo St..

EXISTING CONDITIONS

The existing system has 6-inch and 8-inch P.V.C. on Bishop's Lodge Road and Stagecoach Drive, 4-inch Steel near Brownell-Howland and Terral Roads, and 2-inch Galvanized Steel water mains on Lugar de Monte Vista Street.

All work is under a variety of surfaces including pavement and soil.

OPERATIONAL TIME FRAME

The time frame for construction is 105 calendar days.

(Instructions: Owner of Record to provide a description of existing site, existing buildings, or other existing conditions if information is necessary and not included elsewhere in the Bidding Documents.)

BID FORMS

(SECTION 00300)

BID ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	EST. QTY.	UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
	•				Amoon
10		LF	410		_
20	6" P.V.C. WATER MAIN WITH RESTRAINTS AND FITTINGS	LF	1180		
30	8" D.I. WATER MAIN WITH RESTRAINTS AND FITTINGS	LF	2130		
40	TAPPING SLEEVE 6"X6"	EA	1		
50	NON-PRESSURE CONNECTION 4"-10" LINE	EA	8		
60	6" VALVE AND BOX	EA	6		
70	8" VALVE AND BOX	EA	5		
80	IMPORTED BACKFILL	CY	640		
90	FIRE HYDRANT REMOVAL	EA	2		
100	3-WAY FIR E HYRDRANT ASSEMBLY	EA	5		
110	ASPHALT PAVEMENT REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL	SY	1200		
120	REPLACE CITY STREET PAVEMENT	SY	1200		
130	METER BOX RELOCATION/REPLACEMENT	EA	3		
140	SERVICE TRANSFER 3/4"-1"	EA	20		
150	SERVICE SADDLE 3/4"-1"	EA	25		
160	SERVICE SADDLE 1 1/2"-2"	EA	1		
170	SERVICE TUBING 3/4"-1"	LF	270		
180	SERVICE TUBING 1 1/2"-2"	LF	100		
190	TRAFFIC CONTROL	PER DAY	105		
200	EXPLORATORY EXCAVATION	CY	100		
210	ROCK EXCAVATION	CY	200		
	Total Bid Items 10-180				\$
	NMGRT			8.3125%	\$
	TOTAL BID		\$	0.012070	Ψ
			Ψ.		

FIXED UNIT PRICE SCHEDULE

TOTAL BID AMOUNT:

The City reserves the right to alter quantities based on availability of budget. If this will alter the bid amount, the bidder must note the percent increase for lesser quantities.

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO BID FORM (SECTION 00310)

LUMP SUM PRICE OR UNIT PRICE BID

Section 00310

Invitation No: '16/10/B

Project:

BISHOP'S LODGE RD., BROWNELL-HOWLAND RD., LUGAR DE MONTE VISTA WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT CONTRACT, CIP # 3049

Project No: CIP # 3049

Date:

This Bid is submitted to:

CITY OF SANTA FE PURCHASING DIRECTOR 2651 SIRINGO ROAD, BUILDING H SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87505

- 1. The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an agreement with the Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform and furnish all work as specified or indicated in the Bidding Documents for the Contract Price and within the Contract Time indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- 2. The Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation for Bid and Instructions to Bidders, including, without limitation, those dealing with the disposition of Bid security and other Bidding Documents. This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for sixty (60) days after the day of Bid opening. The Bidder shall sign and submit the Agreement between Owner and Contractor (hereinafter called Agreement) with the bonds and other documents required by the Bidding Requirements within fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of the Owner's Notice to Award.
- 3. In submitting this Bid, the Bidder represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that:
 - A. The Bidder has examined copies of all the Bidding Documents and of the following Addenda (receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged):

No	Date	No	Date
No	Date	No	Date
No	Date	No	Date

- B. The Bidder has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the Bidding Documents, work, site, locality, and all local conditions, laws, and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of the work.
- C. The Bidder has carefully studied all reports and drawings of subsurface conditions which are identified in the Information Available to Bidders and accepts the determination set forth in the Information Available to Bidders of the extent of the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which the Bidder is entitled to rely.
- D. The Bidder has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, and studies with the terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.
- E. This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm, or corporation and is submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association, organization, or corporations. The Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; the Bidder has not solicited or induced any person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding; and the Bidder has not sought

by collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder or over the Owner. It is understood that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids and to waive any technical irregularities in the bidding.

- F. It is the intent of the City to award a Contract to the responsible Bidder submitting the lowest total base bid, provided the Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents.
- 4. Contracting services are required for the City of Santa Fe Project, Bishop's Lodge Rd., Brownell-Howland Rd., Lugar De Monte Vista Water Replacement Project. The work consists of, but is not limited to complete in place installation of approximately 410-feet of 4-inch water main, 1180- feet of 6-inch water main, 2130-feet of 8-inch water main including water valves, valve boxes, fire hydrant removals with all appurtenances and road restoration, in accordance with the drawings, specifications, and other contract documents. The locations of the project are Bishop's Lodge Road between Stagecoach Dr. and Hillcrest Dr., Brownell-Howland and Terral Rd., and Lugar de Monte Vista west of Galisteo St..

Contractor shall be responsible for verifications of all items, measurements and dimensions for bidding.

Contractor shall be responsible for all permits, fees, and State and City inspections associated with the construction.

(All prices listed below are for a complete installed product and include all labor, materials, equipment, bonding, insurance, etc.)

The Bidder shall complete the work for the following prices:

Base Bid:		(\$)
	use words	use	numbers
Gross Receipts Tax:		(\$)
(8.3125%)	use words	use	numbers
Total Base Bid,			
Plus Tax:		(\$)
	use words	use	numbers

TWO COMPLETE COPIES OF THE BID SUBMITTAL ARE REQUIRED

- 5. The Bidder agrees that:
 - A. The work to be performed under the Contract shall be commenced not later than ten (10) consecutive calendar days after the date of written Notice to Proceed, and that completion shall be achieved not later than one hundred-five (105) calendar days after the date of written "Notice to Proceed", except as hereafter extended by valid written Change Order by the Owner.
 - B. Should the Contractor neglect, refuse, or otherwise fail to complete the work within the time specified, the Contractor agrees, in partial consideration for the award of this Contract, to pay the Owner the amount of One-Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) per consecutive calendar day that passes until the work is complete, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages for such breach of the Contract.
 - C. The above process shall include all labor, profit, insurance, taxes, etc., to cover the finished work of the several kinds called for. Changes shall be processed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
 - D. It is understood that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids and to waive any technical irregularities in the bidding.

- 6. The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid:
 - A. Bid Bond
 - B. Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder
 - C. Submittal, acknowledgement of Addenda, if any
 - D. Properly executed Bid Form
 - E. Certification of Equal Employment Opportunity
 - F. Certification of Non-segregated Facilities
 - G. Subcontractor's Listing (as applicable)
 - H. Bidder's Qualifications Form

If any of the above requirements have not been met, the bid will be considered to be non-responsive.

- 7. The terms used in this Bid and the Bidding and Contract Documents are defined in the Conditions of the Construction Contract (General, Supplementary, and Other Conditions)
- 8. If the Bidder is:

-	(Individual's Name)	
doing business as:		
Business address:		
Telephone:		
(SEAL)		
B. A PARTNERSHIP:		
Bv		
By:	(Firm Name)	
By:	(Firm Name) (General Partner)	
By: Business address:	(Firm Name)	
	(Firm Name)	

C. A COF	RPORATION
Ву:	(Corporation Name)
	(State of Incorporation)
Ву:	(Name of person authorized to sign)
	(Title)
w Mexico Corpor	ation:Certificate of Incorporation No.
If a Foreign Cor	rporation:Certificate of Authority No.
Attest:	(Secretary)
Business addres	
Telephone:	
D. A JOIN	
Ву:	(Name)
Address:	
By:	
	(Name)
Each joint ventu	are must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership, and corporation that is a party to the ould be in the manner indicated in the appropriate category.
	in the following: (If none, write none)
	icense No.: Classification:
	axation and Revenue UKS NO.
	axation and Revenue CRS No.: f Santa Fe Business Registration No.:

TWO COMPLETE COPIES OF THE BID SUBMITTAL ARE REQUIRED

SUPPLEMENT TO BID FORMS

(SECTION 00400)

INSTRUCTIONS RELATING TO LOCAL PREFERENCE CERTIFICATION FORM

- 1. All information must be provided. A 10% local preference may be available for this procurement. To qualify for this preference, an offeror must complete and submit the local preference certification form with its offer. If an offer is received without the form attached, completed, notarized, and signed or if the form is received without the required information, the preference will not be applied. The local preference form or a corrected form will not be accepted after the deadline for receipt of bids or proposals.
- 2. **Local Preference precedence over State Preference:** The Local Preference takes precedence over the State Resident Preference and only one such preference will be applied to any one bid or proposal. If it is determined that the local preference applies to one or more offerors in any solicitation, the State Resident Preference will not be applied to any offers.
- 3. Principal Office and location must be stated: To qualify for the local preference, the principal place of business of the enterprise must be physically located within the Santa Fe County Geographic Boundaries. The business location inserted on the Form must be a physical location, street address or such. DO NOT use a post office box or other postal address. Principal place of business must have been established no less than six months preceding application for certification.
- 4. **Subcontractors do not qualify:** Only the business, or if joint venture, one of the parties of the joint venture, which will actually be performing the services or providing the goods solicited by this request and will be responsible under any resulting contract will qualify for this preference. A subcontractor may not qualify on behalf of a prime contractor.
- 5. **Definition:** The following definition applies to this preference.

A local business is an entity with its Principal office and place of business located in Santa Fe County. A Principal office is defined as: The main or home office of the business as identified in tax returns, business licenses and other official business documents. A Principal office is the primary location where the business conducts its daily operations, for the general public, if applicable. A temporary location or movable property, or one that is established to oversee a City of Santa Fe project does not qualify as a Principal office.

Additional Documentation: If requested a business will be required to provide, within 3 working days of the request, documentation to substantiate the information provided on the form. Any business which must be registered under state law must be able to show that it is a business entity in good standing if so requested.

LOCAL PREFERENCE CERTIFICATION FORM

RFP/RFB NO:					
Business Name: _					
Principal Office: _	Street Address	City	State	Zip Code	
City of Santa Fe E	Business License #		_ (Attach Co	opy to this Form)	
-	fice was established: n of this RFP or RFB).		(Estat	lished date must be six m	onths before

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the business set out above is the principal Offeror submitting this offer or is one of the principal Offerors jointly submitting this offer (e.g., as a partnership, joint venture). I hereby certify that the information which I have provided on this Form is true and correct, that I am authorized to sign on behalf of the business set out above and, if requested by the City of Santa Fe, will provide within 3 working days of receipt of notice, the necessary documents to substantiate the information provided on this Form.

Signature of Authorized Individual:	
Printed Name:	
Title: Date:	
Subscribed and sworn before me by	this, day of
My commission expires	
	Notary Public
	SEAL

YOU MUST RETURN THIS FORM WITH YOUR OFFER

RESIDENT VETERANS PREFERENCE CERTIFICATION

_____ (NAME OF CONTRACTOR) hereby certifies the following in regard to application of the resident veterans' preference to this procurement.

Please check one box only:

 \Box I declare under penalty of perjury that my business prior year revenue starting January 1 ending December 31 is less than \$1M allowing me the 10% preference discount on this solicitation. I understand that knowingly giving false or misleading information about this fact constitutes a crime.

 \Box I declare under penalty of perjury that my business prior year revenue starting January 1 ending December 31 is more than \$1M but less than \$5M allowing me the 8% preference discount on this solicitation. I understand that knowingly giving false or misleading information about this fact constitutes a crime.

 \Box I declare under penalty of perjury that my business prior year revenue starting January 1 ending December 31 is more than \$5M allowing me the 7% preference discount on this solicitation. I understand that knowingly giving false or misleading information about this fact constitutes a crime.

I agree to submit a report or reports to the State Purchasing Division of the General Services Department declaring under penalty of perjury that during the last calendar year starting January 1 and ending on December 31, the following to be true and accurate:

In conjunction with this procurement and the requirements of this business application for a Resident Veteran Business Preference/Resident Veteran Contractor Preference under Sections 13-1-21 or 13-1-22 NMSA 1978, which awarded a contract which was on the basis of having such veterans preference, I agree to report to the State Purchasing Division of the General Services Department the awarded amount involved. I will indicate in the report the award amount as a purchase from a public body or as a public works contract from a public body as the case may be.

I understand that knowingly giving false or misleading information on this report constitutes a crime.

I declare under penalty of perjury that this statement is true to the best of my knowledge. I understand that giving false or misleading statements about material fact regarding this matter constitutes a crime.

(Signature of Business Representative)*

(Date)

*Must be an authorized signatory of the Business.

The representation made by checking the above boxes constitutes a material representation by the business. If the statements are proven to be incorrect, this may result in denial of an award or un-award of the procurement.

SIGNED AND SEALED THIS _____ DAY OF _____, 2012.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

THIS FORM MUST BE ATTACHED TO BOND

BID SECURITY FORM

Section 00420

Review and Approval: This Bond has been executed by a Surety named in the current list of "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies," as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Audit Staff Bureau of Accounts, United States Treasury Department.

Approved:

DATE:

Owner's Representative or Governing Authority

00440

THIS FORM MUST BE USED BY SURETY

AGENT'S AFFIDAVIT

BID SECURITY FORM

		(To be filled in by Agent)		
STATE OF)			
COUNTY OF) ss.)			
			being first duly swor	n deposes and says:
that he is the duly appointed a				
and licensed in the State of Ne	ew Mexico. Deponent further	states that a certain bond given to ind	lemnify the City of Santa Fe in	connection with the
construction of				
		, 20, executed by		
contractor, as principal and			, as surety, signed by this of	deponent; and
deponent further states that sat	id bond was written, signed, a	nd delivered by him; that the premiun	n on the same has been or will	be collected by him;
and that the full commission th	hereon has been or will be ret	ained by him.		
Subscribed and sworn to befor		for the County of	, this	day of
My Commission expires:				
Agent's Address:				

Telephone: _	
--------------	--

SUBCONTRACTOR LISTING

<u>NOTE:</u> A subcontractor that submits a bid valued at more than fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) for a city project that is subject to the Public Works Minimum Wage Act 13-4-10 NMSA 1978 shall be registered with the State of New Mexico, Department of Workforce Solutions, Labor Relations, Public Works Bureau.

Section 00430

TRADE	NAME	ADDRESS	TELEPHONE#	LICENSE #	NM DEPT. OF LABOR REGISTRATION	SUBCONTRACTOR SIGNATURE – TO BE OBTAINED AFTER AWARD OF CONTRACT

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS

SUPPLEMENTS TO BID FORMS Section 00440

Instructions: All questions must be answered, and the data given must be clear and comprehensive. This statement must be notarized. If necessary, questions may be answered on separate attached sheets. The Bidder may submit any additional information desired.

1.	Name of Bidder:
2.	Permanent main office address:
3.	When organized:
4.	If a corporation, where incorporated:
5.	How many years have you been engaged in the contracting business under your present firm or trade name?
6.	Contracts on hand (schedule these, showing amount of each Contract and the appropriate anticipated dates of completion):
7.	General character of work performed by your company:
8.	Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you?
	If so, where and why?
9.	Have you ever defaulted on a contract?
	If so, where and why?
10.	List the more important projects recently completed by your company, stating the approximate cost for each, and the month and year completed:
11.	List your major equipment available for this contract:
12.	Describe your organization's experience in construction work similar in importance to this project:

14.	Credit Available:							
15.	Give bank reference:							
16.	Will you, upon request, fill out a detailed financial statement and furnish any other information that may be required by the Owner?							
17.	The undersigned authorizes and requests any person, firm, or corporation to furnish any information requested by the Owner in verification of the recitals comprising this Statement of Bidder Qualifications Dated at							
			, 20					
			Bidder					
			By:					
			Title:					
)						
	OF NEW MEXICO))ss)						
STATE COUNI	TY OF)	, being duly sworn, deposes and					
COUNT	TY OF)	, being duly sworn, deposes and					

Notary Public

My Commission expires: _____

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER

Section 00450

STATE OF)					
COUNTY OF)ss.)					
	, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:					
1)	He is the of, the Bidder that has submitted and attached Bid;					
2)	He is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and of all pertinent circumstances respecting such Bid;					
3)	Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid;					
4)	Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly with the Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham Bid in connection with the Contract for which the attached Bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such Contract or has in any manner directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communications or conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the Bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Santa Fe, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and					
5)	The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affront.					
	Ву:					
	Title:					
Subscribed and s	worn to before me this day of, 20					
Notary Public						

My Commission expires:
CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES Section 00460

(Applicable to construction contracts and related subcontracts exceeding \$10,000 which are not exempt from the Equal Opportunity Clause.)

The construction contractor certifies that he does not maintain or provide for his employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments and that he does not permit his employees to perform their services at any location, under his control, where segregated facilities are maintained. The construction contractor certifies further that he will not maintain or provide for his employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he will not permit his employees to perform their services at any location, under his control, where segregated facilities are maintained. The construction contractor agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity Clause in this contract. As used in this certification, the term "segregated facilities" means: any waiting room, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas; time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, or national origin because of habit, local custom, or otherwise. The construction contractor agrees that (except where he has obtained identical certifications from proposed Subcontractors for specific time periods) he will obtain identical certifications from proposed <u>SUBCONTRACTORS prior to the award</u> of subcontracts exceeding \$10,000 which are not exempt from the provision of the Equal Opportunity Clause and that he will retain such certifications in his files.

	By:	
	Title:	
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of	of, 20	

Notary Public

My Commission expires:

CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Section 00470

INSTRUCTIONS

This certification is required pursuant to Executive Order 11246 (30 F.R. 12319-25). The implementing rules and regulations provide that any Bidder or perspective contractor, or any of their proposed Subcontractors, shall state as an initial part of the Bid or negotiations of the Contract whether he has participated in any previous Contract or subcontract subject to the equal opportunity clause; and, if so, whether he has filed all compliance reports due under applicable instructions.

Where the certification indicates that the Bidder has not filed a compliance report due under applicable instructions, such Bidder shall be required to submit a compliance report within seven calendar days after Bid opening. No Contract shall be awarded unless such report is submitted.

CERTIFICATION BY BIDDER

Bidder's	Name:
Address:	
1.	Bidder has participated in a previous Contract or subcontract subject to the Equal Opportunity Clause.
	Yes No
2.	Compliance reports were required to be filed in connection with such Contract or subcontract.
	Yes No
Certificat	ion - The information above is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.
Name and	d Title of Signer (please type)

Signature

Date

AGREEMENT FORMS

(SECTION 00500)

CITY OF SANTA FE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM

AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

This Agreement is entered into this _____ day of ______, 2015, by and between the CITY OF SANTA FE, herein known as the Owner, and ______, herein known as the Contractor.

For the following:

PROJECT: PROJECT NO.: Water Main Replacements CIP # 3049

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Owner, through its Governing Body, is authorized to enter into a Construction Contract for the project; and

WHEREAS, the Owner has let this Contract according to the established State and Local Purchasing procedures for contracts of the type and amount let; and

WHEREAS, construction of this Project was approved by the Governing Body of the City of Santa Fe at its meeting of _____.

The OWNER and the CONTRACTOR agree:

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, the Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary, and other Conditions), the Specifications, all Addenda issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement. These documents form the Contract, and all are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein.

ARTICLE 2

THE WORK

The Contractor shall perform all the work required by the Contract Documents for the replacement and upgrade of water main lines on Bishop's Lodge Road between Stagecoach Drive and Hillcrest Drive, Brownell-Howland and Terral Road, and Lugar de Monte Vista north of Galisteo Street.

The work consists of furnishing all equipment, labor and materials as required by the City of Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Contractor shall be responsible for verifications of all measurements and dimensions for bidding on each subsequent Work Order.

Contractor shall provide and keep at the work site, a complete "as-built" record set of drawings that shall be corrected daily and shall show every change from the original approved drawings and specifications. These changes shall be forwarded to City periodically. The drawings shall reflect exact and actual "as-built" conditions of construction, installation, and erection as it progresses. Where drawings are not adequate to show "as-built" conditions, Contractor shall prepare sketches which delineate the necessary "as-built" information. City shall furnish two (2) sets of all paper "blue-line" print "approved" drawings for use in accomplishing specified mark-up. Final "as-built" drawings shall be delivered to City by Contractor upon completion of the work.

The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining traffic control at the site in conformance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

Contractor shall be responsible for all permits, fees, and State and City inspections associated with the construction.

ARTICLE 3

TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

The work to be performed under this Contract may commenced not later than ten (10) consecutive calendar days after the date of written Notice to Proceed. Substantial Completion shall be achieved no later than (105) <u>one hundred five</u> calendar days after the date of written Notice to Proceed, except as hereafter extended by valid written Change Order by the Owner. This Agreement may be terminated by the City upon 10 days written notice to the Contractor.

<u>ARTICLE 4</u>

CONTRACT SUM

The Owner shall pay the Contractor in current funds for the performance of the work, subject to additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents, the Contract Sum of ______. The Contractor agrees that if it ever receives a partial or total refund of Gross Receipts Taxes (GRT) it will transmit the refund to the City immediately. The GRT amount of _______ is [\$8.3125]% of <u>Base Bid</u> and is being paid by the Owner to the Contractor so that the Contractor can pay the GRT to the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department (NMTRD). It is not compensation for services rendered. The Contractor agrees to timely remit this GRT to NMTRD.

The Contract Sum is determined as follows:

Base Bid\$Gross Receipts Tax\$TOTAL\$

ARTICLE 5 PROGRESS PAYMENTS

Based upon Application for Payment submitted to the Owner by the Contractor and Certificates for Payment issued by the Owner, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the Contractor as provided in the Contract documents for the period ending the last day of the month as follows:

Not later than twenty-one (21) days following the end of the period covered by the Application for Payment, ninety five percent (95%) of the portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to labor, materials, and equipment incorporated in the work and ninety five percent (95%) of the portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to materials and equipment suitably stored at the site or some other location agreed upon in writing for the period covered by the Application for Payment, less the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner; and upon substantial completion of the entire work, a sum sufficient to increase the total payments to ninety eight percent (98%) of the Contract Sum, less such amounts as the Owner shall determine for all incomplete work and unsettled claims as provided in the Contract documents.

ARTICLE 6

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Should the Contractor neglect, refuse, or otherwise fail to complete the work within the Contract Time or any extension in the Contract thereof, the Contractor agrees to pay to the Owner the amount of One Thousand dollars (\$1,000) per consecutive calendar days of delay until the work is completed and accepted or until voided pursuant to the provisions of the General Conditions of the Contract, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages for such breach of the Contract.

ARTICLE 7

FINAL PAYMENT

Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be paid by the Owner to the Contractor within twenty-one (21) calendar days after all deficiencies to the Contract document that were noted during the Substantial Completion Inspection and listed on the attachment to the Certificate of Substantial Completion have been corrected, and provided the Contract has been fully performed and a final Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Owner. In addition, the Contractor shall provide to the Owner a certified statement of Release of Lien (AIA Document G706A or approved form), Consent of Surety, Warranty from Prime Contractor, Warranties from Suppliers and Manufacturers, training sessions, equipment/operating manuals, and as-built drawings.

ARTICLE 8 SCHEDULE

The Contractor shall, within five (5) days after the effective date of Notice to Proceed, prepare and submit five (5) copies of a progress schedule covering project operations for the (105) one hundred five calendar day Contract period. This progress schedule shall be of the type generally referred to as a Critical Path Method (CPM), Critical Path Schedule (CPS), and Critical Path Analysis (CPA), and other similar designations. The CPM shall be used to control the timing and sequences of the project. All work shall be done in accordance with the CPM Planning and Scheduling. A written statement of explanation shall be borne by the Contractor, and are part of their Contract (See Article 4.10, Progress Schedules of Section 00700, General Conditions of the Contract).

ARTICLE 9

GENERAL AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

- 9.1 This Agreement shall be governed exclusively by the provisions hereof and by the laws of the State of New Mexico as the same from time to time exist.
- 9.2 Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in the Conditions of the Contract shall have the meanings designated in those Conditions.
- 9.3 The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Owner against any and all injury, loss, or damage, including, without limitation, costs of defense, court costs and attorney's fees, arising out of the acts, errors, or omissions of the Contractor.
- 9.4 An enumeration of the Contractor's Liability Insurance requirements appears in the General Conditions of the Contract for construction. Insurance requirements are also described in the Instructions to the Bidder section of the Project Manual. Contractor shall maintain adequate insurance in at least the aggregate maximum amounts which the Owner could be liable under the New Mexico Tort Claims Act and shall provide proof of such insurance coverage to the City. It is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to be in compliance with the law.
- 9.5 This Agreement shall not become effective until: (1) approved by the Governing Body; and (2) signed by all parties required to sign this Agreement.
- 9.6 The Contractor and the Contractor's agents and employees are independent contractors performing professional and technical services for the Owner and are not employees of the Owner. The Contractor and the Contractor's agents and employees shall not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use of Owner's vehicles, or any other benefits afforded to employees of the Owner as a result of this Agreement.
- 9.7 The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the services to be performed under this Agreement without prior written approval of the Owner.

- 9.8 The Contractor shall maintain detailed time records which indicate the date, time and nature of services rendered. These records shall be subject to inspection by the Owner, the Department of Finance and Administration and the State Auditor. The Owner shall have the right to audit billings both before and after payment; payment under this Agreement shall not foreclose the right of the Owner to recover excessive illegal payments.
- 9.9 The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being made by the Owner for the performance of this Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not made by the Owner, this Agreement shall terminate upon written notice being given by the Owner to the Contractor. The Owner's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted by the Contractor and shall be final.
- 9.10 The Contractor warrants that the Contractor presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance or services required under this Agreement.
- 9.11 The Contractor hereby warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 29 CFR 1630.
- 9.12 The Contractor, upon final payment of the amounts due under this Agreement, releases the Owner, the Owner's officers and employees, and the City of Santa Fe from all liabilities and obligations arising from or under this Agreement, including, without limitation, all damages, losses, costs, liability, and expenses, including, without limitation, attorney's fees and costs of litigation that the Contractor may have.
- 9.13 The Contractor agrees not to purport to bind the Owner to any obligation not assumed herein by the Owner, unless the Contractor has express written authority to do so, and then only within the strict limits of that authority.
- 9.14 Notices. Any and all notices provided for hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered, given and received when (i) personally delivered, or (ii) 5 days after the same are deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the applicable party at the address indicated below for such party or at such other address as may be designated by either party in a written note to the other party.

OWNER

City of Santa Fe Sangre De Cristo Water Division P.O. Box 909 Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0909

CONTRACTOR

- 9.15 Gender, Singular/Plural. Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall be held and construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, unless the context otherwise requires.
- 9.16 Captions and Section Headings. The captions and section headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, and in no way limit, define, or enlarge the terms, scope and conditions of this Agreement.
- 9.17 This document shall be executed in no less than five (5) counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original.
- 9.18 Certificates and Documents Incorporated. All certificates and documentation required by the provisions of the Agreement shall be attached to this Agreement at the time of execution, and are hereby incorporated by reference as though set forth in full in this Agreement to the extent they are consistent with its conditions and terms.
- 9.19 Separability. If any clause or provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid or unenforceable under present or future laws effective during the term of this Agreement, then and in that event, it is the intention of the parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby.
- 9.20 Waiver. No provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived by either party unless such waiver be in writing signed by the party making the waiver and addressed to the other party; nor shall any custom or practice which may evolve between the parties in the administration of the terms hereof be construed to waive or lessen the right of either party to insist upon the performance by the other party in strict accordance with the terms hereof. Further, the waiver by any party of breach by the other party of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition thereof.
- 9.21 Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire Contract between the parties and except as otherwise provided herein, may not be amended, changed, modified, or altered without the written consent of the parties hereto. This Agreement incorporates all of the conditions, agreements, and understandings between the parties concerning the subject matter of this Contract, and all such conditions, understandings, and agreements have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior conditions, agreement, or understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless embodied in this written Agreement.
- 9.22 Interchangeable Terms. For purposes of all provisions within this Agreement and all attachments hereto, the terms "Agreement" and "Contract" shall have the same meaning and shall be interchangeable.
- 9.23 Words and Phrases. Words, phrases, and abbreviations which have well-known technical or trade meanings used in the Contract documents shall be used according to such recognized meaning. In the event of a conflict, the more stringent meaning shall govern.
- 9.24 Relationship of Contract Documents. The Contract Documents are complementary, and any requirement of one Contract Document shall be as binding as if required by all.

- 9.25 Pursuant to Section 13-1-191, NMSA 1978, reference is hereby made to the Criminal Laws of New Mexico (including Sections 30-14-1, 30-24-2, and 30-41-1 through 30-41-3, NMSA 1978) which prohibit bribes, kickbacks, and gratuities, violation of which constitutes a felony. Further, the Procurement Code (Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199, NMSA 1978) imposes civil and criminal penalties for its violation.
- 9.26 By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intend to create any right, title or interest in or for the benefit of any person other than the Owner and the Contractor. No person shall claim any right, title or interest under this Agreement or seek to enforce this Agreement as a third party beneficiary of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 10 NEW MEXICO TORT CLAIMS ACT

Any liability incurred by the City of Santa Fe in connection with this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, Section 41-4-1, et. seq. NMSA 1978, as amended. The City and its "public employees" as defined in the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, do not waive sovereign immunity, do not waive any defense and do not waive any limitation of liability pursuant to law. No provision in this Agreement modifies or waives any provision of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above.

ATTEST:

YOLANDA Y. VIGIL, CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

KELLEY A. BRENNAN, CITY ATTORNEY

APPROVED:

OSCAR RODRIGUEZ, DIRECTOR FINANCE DEPARTMENT OWNER:

JAVIER M. GONZALES, MAYOR

DATE

CONTRACTOR:

BY: _____

TITLE:

DATE:

NM Taxation and Revenue CRS No.______ City of Santa Fe Business Reg. No._____

52350.572970

DATE

NAME ADDRESS CITY/STATE/ZIP

RE:

Dear:

"OFFICIAL NOTICE-TO-PROCEED"

On ______, the City Manager awarded a Construction Contract to your firm for Capital Improvements Program Project No. _3049___ BISHOP'S LODGE RD., BROWNELL-HOWLAND RD., LUGAR DE MONTE VISTA WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT CONTRACT– Bid Number 16/10/B.

This letter shall serve as official Notice-to-Proceed with the work described for this project in the Contract Documents and _Request for Bids_____.

The award of the Contract is based on your Bid proposal dated _____, in the amount of \$_____.

Based on the date of issuance of this notice, as starting date, _____, and the _____() contract work time limit, the entire work under this Contract shall be substantially completed by _____.

Attached are two (2) signed copies of the Agreement between Owner and Contractor. These are for your files and Surety Company.

Please comply with the requirements for filing payroll statements with the State Labor Commission and the City Contract Compliance Officer.

Date

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice and return signed copies to the Owner (City of Santa Fe, Capital Improvements Program) and Engineer (Bill Huey, BCHuey@santafenm.gov).

Sincerely,

RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGED:

By

Nick Schiavo, P.E. Acting Public Utilities and Water Division Director Sangre De Cristo Water Division

xc: Project/Book File

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT

(SECTION 00700)

NOTICE

This document has been prepared by the Capital Improvements Program (CIP) and Contract Compliance staff of the City of Santa Fe for use in construction projects.

DOCUMENT - SECTION 00710

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION

(THIS DOCUMENT HAS IMPORTANT LEGAL CONSEQUENCES; CONSULTATION WITH AN ATTORNEY IS ENCOURAGED WITH RESPECT TO ITS COMPLETION OR MODIFICATION.)

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1.	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	9.	PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
2.	ADMINISTRATION – PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT WATER DIVISION	10.	PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
3.	OWNER	11.	INSURANCE
4.	CONTRACTOR	12.	CHANGES IN THE WORK
5.	SUBCONTRACTORS	13.	UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
6.	WORK BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS	14.	TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT
7.	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	15.	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
8.	TIME	16.	MINIMUM WAGE RATES

ARTICLE 1

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

1.1 **DEFINITIONS**

1.1.1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of the Owner-Contractor Agreement, the Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary, and Other Conditions), the Drawings, the Specifications, and all Addenda issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Contract signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a written interpretation issued by the Owner's Representative, or (4) a written order for a minor change in the work issued by the Owner's Representative. The Contract Documents do not include Bidding Documents such as the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid, the Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, the Contractor's Bid, or portions of Addenda relating to any of these, or any other documents, unless specifically enumerated in the Owner-Contractor Agreement.

1.1.2 THE CONTRACT

The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. This Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification as defined in Subparagraph 1.1.1. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create any contractual relationship of any kind between the Owner's Representative and the Contractor, but the Owner's Representative shall be entitled to performance of obligations intended for his benefit, and to enforcement thereof. Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship between the Owner's Representative and any Subcontractor or Subsubcontractor.

1.1.3 THE WORK

The work comprises the design and completed construction required by the Contract Documents, and includes design specifications, and all labor necessary to produce such construction, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in such construction.

1.1.4 THE PROJECT

The Project is the total design and construction of which the work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part.

1.2 EXECUTION, CORRELATION AND INTENT

- 1.2.1 No fewer than five (5) copies of the Contract Documents shall be signed by the Owner and the Contractor. If either the Owner or the Contractor or both do not sign the Conditions of the Contract, Drawings, Specifications, or any of the other Contract Documents, the Owner's Representative shall identify such Documents.
- 1.2.2 By executing the Contract, the Contractor represents that he has visited the site, familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the work is to be performed, and correlated his observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 1.2.3 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one shall be as binding as if required by all. Work not covered in the Contract Documents will not be required unless it is consistent therewith and is reasonably inferable therefrom as being necessary to produce the intended results. Words and abbreviations which have well-known technical or trade meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such

recognized meanings. In the event of a conflict between the Contract Documents, the more stringent requirements shall govern.

1.2.4 The organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and the arrangement of Drawings shall not control the Contractor in dividing the work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of work to be performed by any trade.

ARTICLE 2

ENGINEER

2.1 **DEFINITION**

2.1.1 The Engineer is the person lawfully license to practice engineering, or an entity lawfully practicing engineering identified as such in the Owner-Contractor Agreement, and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender. The term "Engineer" means the Engineer or his authorized representative.

2.2 ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT – SANGRE DE CRISTO WATER DIVISION

- 2.2.1 The Engineer will provide administration of the Contract as hereinafter described.
- 2.2.2 The Engineer will be the Owner's representative during construction and until final payment is due. The Engineer will advise and consult with the Owner. The Owner's instructions to the Contractor shall be forwarded through the Engineer. The Engineer shall have the authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents, unless otherwise modified by written instrument in accordance with Subparagraph 2.2.17.
- 2.2.3 The Engineer shall submit to the Owner, for approval, a list of critical inspection points based upon the construction schedule furnished by the Contract (Paragraph 4.10.1). The Engineer and his staff (including the on-site representative, if agreed upon) shall make at least three (3) weekly visits to the site at those critical points and at other times as the Engineer deems appropriate during the progress of the work. Additionally, the Engineer shall familiarize himself with the progress and quality of the work and determine if the work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. On the basis of on-site observations, as an Engineer, he shall guard the Owner against defects and deficiencies in the construction. Should the Engineer determine that any portion of the work varies from the intent of the Contract Documents he shall immediately notify the Contractor and the Owner of the non-compliance and the nature of the work required to correct such non-compliance. The Engineer shall recommend to the Owner, in writing, to issue a "stop work order" for any portion of the work that does not substantially comply with the intent of the Contract Documents, except as follows.
- 2.2.4 The Engineer shall not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the work. Additionally, the Engineer shall not be responsible for the Contractor's failure to carry out the work in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Engineer shall reject work which does not meet or exceed the standards established by the Contract Documents. Whenever, in his reasonable opinion, he considers it necessary or advisable to ensure the proper implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, he will have authority to require special inspection or testing of any work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents whether or not such work be then fabricated, installed or completed.
- 2.2.5 The Engineer shall at all times have access to the work wherever it is in preparation and progress. The Contractor shall provide facilities for such access so the Engineer may perform his functions under the Contract Documents.
- 2.2.6 Based on the Engineer's observations and an evaluation of the Contractor's Application for Payment, the Engineer will determine the amounts owing to the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts, as provided in Paragraph 9.4.
- 2.2.7 The Engineer will be the interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents and the judge of the performance thereunder by both the Owner and the Contractor.

- 2.2.8 The Engineer will render interpretations necessary for the proper execution or progress of the work, with reasonable promptness and in accordance with any time limit agreed upon. Either party to the Contract may make written request to the Engineer for such interpretations.
- 2.2.9 Claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Contractor and the Owner relating to the execution or progress of the work or the interpretation of the Contract Documents shall be referred to the Engineer for decision which he will render in writing within a reasonable time.
- 2.2.10 All interpretations and decisions of the Engineer shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. In his capacity as interpreter and judge, he will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both the Owner and the Contractor, will not show partiality to either, and will not be liable for the result of any interpretation or decision rendered in good faith in such capacity.
- 2.2.11 The Engineer's decisions in matters relating to artistic effect will be final if consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.
- 2.2.12 The Engineer will have authority to reject work which does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever, in his opinion, he considers it necessary or advisable for the implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, he will have authority to require special inspection or testing of the work in accordance with Subparagraph 7.6.2 whether or not such work be then fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither the Engineer's authority to act under this Subparagraph 2.2.12, nor any decision made by him in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority, shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Engineer to the Contractor, any Subcontractor, any of their agents or employees, or any other person performing any of the work.
- 2.2.13 The Engineer will review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and samples, but only for conformance with the design concept of the work and with the information given in the Contract Documents. Such action shall be taken with reasonable promptness so as to cause no delay. The Engineer's approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the time is a component.
- 2.2.14 The Engineer will prepare Change Orders in accordance will Article 12 and will have authority to order minor changes in the work as provided in Subparagraph 12.3.1.
- 2.2.15 The Engineer will conduct inspections to determine the dates of Substantial Completion and Final Completion will receive and forward to the Owner for the Owner's review of written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and assembled by the Contractor and will issue a final Certificate of payment upon compliance with the requirements of Paragraph 9.9
- 2.2.16 If the Owner and Engineer agree, the Engineer will provide one or more Project Representatives to assist the Engineer in carrying out his responsibilities at the site. The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of any such Project Representative shall be as set forth in an exhibit to be incorporated in the Contract Documents.
- 2.2.17 The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Engineer as the Owner's representative during construction as set for in the Contract Documents will not be modified or extended without written consent of the Owner, the Contractor and the Engineer.
- 2.2.18 In case of the termination of the employment of the Engineer, the Owner shall appoint an Engineer whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the former Engineer.

ARTICLE 3

OWNER

3.1 DEFINITION

3.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Owner-Contractor Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender. The term "Owner" means the Owner or his authorized representative.

3.2 INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER

- 3.2.1 The Owner shall, at the request of the Contractor, at the time of execution of the Owner-Contractor Agreement, furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence that he has made financial arrangements to fulfill his obligations under the Contract. Unless such reasonable evidence is furnished, the Contractor is not required to execute the Owner-Contractor Agreement or to commence the work.
- 3.2.2 The Owner shall furnish all surveys describing the physical characteristics for the site for the Project.
- 3.2.3 Except as provided in Subparagraph 4.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments, and charges required for the construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing facilities.
- 3.2.4 Information or services under the Owner's control shall be furnished by the Owner with reasonable promptness to avoid delay in the orderly progress of the work.
- 3.2.5 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be furnished, free of charge, all copies of Drawings and Specifications reasonably necessary for the execution of the work.
- 3.2.6 The Owner shall forward all instructions to the Contractor through the Owner's Representative.
- 3.2.7 The foregoing are in addition to other duties and responsibilities of the Owner enumerated herein and especially those in respect to work by Owner or by Separate Contractors, Payments and Completion, and Insurance in Articles 6, 9 and 11 respectively.

3.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK

3.3.1 If the Contractor fails to correct defective work as required by Paragraph 13.2 or persistently fails to carry out the work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner, by a written order signed personally or by an agent specifically so empowered by the Owner in writing, may order the Contractor to stop the work, or any portion thereof, until the cause of such order has been eliminated; however, this right of the Owner to stop the work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by Subparagraph 6.1.3.

3.4 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK

3.4.1 If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails within seven days after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, after seven days following receipt by the Contractor of an additional written notice and without prejudice to any other remedy he may have, make good such deficiencies. In such case, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the cost of correcting such deficiencies, including compensation for the Owner's Representative's additional services made necessary by such default, neglect or failure. Such action by the Owner and the amount charged to the Contractor are both subject to the prior approval of the Owner's Representative. If the payments then or thereafter due to the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.

ARTICLE 4

CONTRACTOR

4.1 **DEFINITION**

4.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Owner-Contractor Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender. The term "Contractor" means the Contractor or his authorized representative.

4.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

4.2.1 The Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and shall at once report to the Owner's Representative any error, inconsistency or omission he may discover. The Contractor shall be liable to the Owner or the Owner's Representative for any damage resulting from any such errors, inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall perform no portion of the work at any time without Contract Documents or, where required, approved Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples for such portion of the work.

4.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

- 4.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the work, using his best skill and attention. He shall be solely responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the work under the contract.
- 4.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his employees, Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons performing any of the work under a contract with the Contractor.
- 4.3.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved from his obligations to perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents either by the activities or duties of the Owner's Representative in his administration of the Contract, or by inspections, tests or approvals required or performed by persons other than the Contractor.

4.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS

- 4.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work, whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the work.
- 4.4.2 The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among his employees and shall not employ on the work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him.

4.5 WARRANTY

- 4.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Owner's Representative that all materials and equipment furnished under this Contract will be new unless otherwise specified, and that all work will be of good quality, free from faults and conforming to these requirements. Substitutions not properly approved and authorized, may be considered defective. If required by the Owner's Representative, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. This warranty is not limited by the provisions in Paragraph 13.2.
- 4.5.2 The Contractor shall and hereby does warrant and guarantee all workmanship, labor, and materials performed and supplied by him or his Subcontractors for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion as evidenced by the date of the Owner's Representative's Final Certificate of Payment of this Contract. This also includes <u>all labor</u> required for replacing materials or equipment found to be defective within the one (1) year period. All guarantees for a longer period of time required by the work sections of these Specifications shall be secured by the Contractor

from Subcontractors and delivered to the Owner's Representative and are hereby warranted by the Contractor as much as if countersigned by him.

4.5.3 The Contractor shall and hereby does warrant and guarantee all asphalt and concrete installed for roadway and trail paving, curb and gutter, including all workmanship, labor, and materials performed and supplied by him or his Subcontractors for a period of two (2) years from the date of completion as evidenced by the date of the Owner's Representative's Final Certificate of Payment of this Contract. This also includes <u>all labor</u> required for replacing roadway and trail paving, curb and gutter found to be defective within the two (2) year period. All guarantees for a longer period of time required by the work sections of these Specifications shall be secured by the Contractor from Subcontractors and delivered to the Owner's Representative and are hereby warranted by the Contractor as much as if countersigned by him.

4.6 TAXES

4.6.1 The Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer gross receipts tax, use and other similar taxes for the work or portions thereof provided by the Contractor which are legally enacted at the time Bids are received, whether or not yet effective.

4.7 PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES

- 4.7.1 The Contractor shall secure and pay for the building permit and for all other permits and governmental fees, licenses and inspections necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work which are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and which are legally required at the time the Bids are received.
- 4.7.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the work.
- 4.7.3 It is not the responsibility of the Contractor to make certain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, building codes and regulations. If the Contractor observes that any of the Contract Documents are at variance therewith in any respect, he shall promptly notify the Owner's Representative in writing, and any necessary changes shall be accomplished by appropriate Modification.
- 4.7.4 If the Contractor performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, and without such notice to the Owner's Representative, he shall assume full responsibility therefore and shall in turn notify the Owner's Representative of such action.

4.8 ALLOWANCES

- 4.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items covered by these allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by these allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons as the Owner may direct, but the Contractor will not be required to employ persons against whom he makes a reasonable objection.
- 4.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents:
 - A. These allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor, less any applicable trade discount of the materials and equipment required by the allowance delivered at the site, and all applicable taxes;
 - B. The Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installations costs, overhead, profit and other expenses contemplated for the original allowance shall be included in the Contract Sum and not in this allowance;
 - C. Whenever the cost is more than or less than the allowance, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by Change Order, the amount of which will recognize changes, if any, in handling costs on the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses.

4.9 SUPERINTENDENT

4.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent Superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance at the project site during the progress of the work. The Superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and all communications given to the Superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor. Important communications shall be confirmed in writing. Other communications shall be so confirmed on written request in each case.

4.10 PROGRESS SCHEDULES

- 4.10.1 The Contractor shall, within ten (10) days after the effective date of Notice to Proceed, furnish five copies of a preliminary progress schedule describing his operations for the one-hundred and five (105) day contract period. The preliminary progress schedule shall be a bar graph or an arrow diagram showing the items the Contractor intends to commence and complete the various work stages, operations, and contract means planned to be started during the one-hundred and five (105) day contract period.
- 4.10.2 Unless otherwise specified in the Special Provisions, the Contractor shall submit for approval by the Owner's Representative, within five (5) days after the effective date of Notice to Proceed, traffic control plans prepared by a qualified individual for this project.
- 4.10.3 The graphic network diagram shall consist of an arrow diagram or a geometric figure and connector diagram which clearly depicts the major subdivisions of the work, the order and interdependencies of activities planned by the Contractor, as well as, activities by others which affect the Contractor's planning. The intended time for starting and completing each activity shall be shown for each construction operation. For those activities lasting more than 30 days, either the estimated time for 25-50 and 75 percent completion or other significant milestones in the course of the activity, shall be shown. In addition to the actual construction operations, the network diagram shall show such items as submittal of samples and Shop Drawings, delivery of materials and equipment, construction in the area by other forces, traffic detour controls, and other significant items related to the progress of construction. The graphic network diagram shall be printed or neatly and legibly drawn to a linear scale.
- 4.10.4 Activities shown shall be coordinated insofar as possible with the Contract Bid items, types of work and maximum number of activities of each type.
- 4.10.5 The computer printout or list of activities shall show for each activity the estimated duration, the earliest starting and finishing dates, the latest starting and finishing dates, and float or slack time. Activities which constitute the critical sequence shall be identified showing a total job duration equal to the Contract Time.
- 4.10.6 The written explanation shall contain sufficient information to describe the construction methods to be used and to enable the Owner's Representative to evaluate the schedule and supporting analysis for validity and practicability. If the schedule or written explanation is not accepted by the Owner's Representative, the Contractor shall resubmit the rejected items within ten (10) days after rejection.
- 4.10.7 The analysis may employ the use of an electric computer or may consist of a non-computer analysis if the latter is suitable to analyze the number of activities required. The adequacy of the system selected shall be acceptable to the Owner's Representative.
- 4.10.8 The Contractor shall submit to the Owner's Representative monthly progress status reports on dates directed by the Owner's Representative. Such reports shall list those uncompleted activities which have less than 30 days float and which are either in progress or scheduled to be started within the next reporting period. For each of the listed activities, the following shall be shown:
 - A. Starting date scheduled in last critical-path-analysis.
 - B. Actual or intended starting date.
 - C. Revised activity duration, if any.

If the noted starting dates or duration delay the scheduled project completion date, the delay shall be named.

Reasons for the delay shall be given with an explanation of the Contractor's proposed corrective action. The Contractor shall also note each activity completed during the report period.

- 4.10.9 A revised critical-path-type analysis shall be submitted when one or more of the following conditions occur:
 - A. When an approved Change Order significantly affects the contract completion date, or the sequence of activities.
 - B. When progress of any critical activity falls significantly behind the scheduled progress.
 - C. When delay on a non-critical activity is of such magnitude as to change the course of the critical path.
 - D. At any time the Contractor elects to change any sequence of activities affecting the critical path.

The revised analysis shall be made in the same form and detail as the original submittal and shall be accompanied by an explanation of the reasons for the revisions.

4.10.10 The Contractor shall prosecute the work in accordance with the latest critical path type analysis. Deviations therefrom shall be submitted to the Owner's Representative for review. In the event that the progress of items along the critical path is delayed, the Contractor shall revise his planning to include additional forces, equipment, shifts or hours necessary to meet the Contract completion date. All additional cost resulting therefrom will not be borne by the Owner.

4.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE

4.11.1 The Contractor shall maintain at the site, for the Owner, one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to record all changes made during construction, and approved Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples. These shall be available to the Owner's Representative and shall be delivered to him for the Owner upon completion of the work.

4.12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

- 4.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the work by the Contractor or any Subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate some portion of the work.
- 4.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate a material, product or system for some portion of the work.
- 4.12.3 Samples are physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards by which the work will be judged.
- 4.12.4 The Contractor shall review, approve and submit, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the work or in the work of the Owner or any separate Contractor, all Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples required by the Contract Documents.
- 4.12.5 By approving and submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, the Contractor represents that he has determined and verified all materials, field measurements, and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and that he has checked and coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the work and of the Contract Documents.
- 4.12.6 The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for any deviation from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Owner's Representative's approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Owner's Representative in writing of such deviation at the time of submission and the Owner's Representative has given written approval to the specific deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved from responsibility for errors or omissions in the Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples by the Owner's Representative's approval thereof.
- 4.12.7 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples,

to revisions other than those requested by the Owner's Representative on previous submittals.

4.12.8 No portion of the work requiring submission of a Shop Drawing, Product Data or Sample shall be commenced until the submittal has been approved by the Owner's Representative as provided in Subparagraph 2.2.13. All such portions of the work shall be in accordance with approved submittals.

4.13 USE OF SITE

- 4.13.1 The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits and the Contract Documents and shall not reasonably encumber the site with any materials or equipment.
- 4.13.2 The Contractor shall hold and save the Owner free and harmless from liability of any nature or kind arising from use, trespass or damage occasioned by third persons.

4.14 CUTTING AND PATCHING OF WORK

- 4.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for all cutting, fitting, patching or grading that may be required to complete the work or to make its several parts fit together properly.
- 4.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger any portion of the work or the work of the Owner or any separate contracts by cutting, patching or otherwise altering any work, or by excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter the work of the Owner or any separate Contractor except with the written consent of the Owner and of such separate Contractor. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or any separate Contractor his consent to cutting or otherwise altering the work.

4.15 CLEANING UP

- 4.15.1 The Contractor at all times shall keep the premises free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by his operations. At the completion of the work, he shall remove all his waste materials and rubbish from and about the Project as well as all his tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials.
- 4.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up at the completion of the work, the Owner may do so as provided in Paragraph 3.4, and the cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor.
- 4.15.3 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for performance of the following clean up:
 - A. <u>Debris:</u> Regardless of the nature of the debris, <u>it shall be immediately cleared form the work area</u>. Each trade shall cooperate with other trades in the removal of debris and in keeping a clean job throughout.
 - B. <u>Cleaning of All Painted, Decorated, and Stained Work:</u> The Contractor shall remove all marks, stains, finger prints, and other soil or dirt from all painted, decorated, and stained work.
 - C. <u>Removal of all Temporary Protections:</u> The Contractor shall remove all temporary protections and shall clean all floors, furnishings and structures at completion.
 - D. <u>Removal of all Spots, Soils, and Other Contaminants for Paved Surfaces:</u> The Contractor shall remove all spots, soil and debris from all paved surfaces and shall wash the same upon completion.
 - E. <u>Cleaning of all Fixtures and Equipment:</u> The Contractor shall clean all fixtures and equipment, removing all stains, paint, dirt, and dust.

4.16 COMMUNICATIONS

- 4.16.1 The Contractor shall forward all communications to the Owner through the Owner's Representative.
- 4.16.2 The Contractor shall designate a contact person to establish and maintain communication with all residents who will

be affected by this construction. The Contractor shall contact all affected residents and businesses at least one week prior to commencing work and will provide updates at least weekly to the residents. Residents and businesses whose ingress and egress from their property will be temporarily blocked shall be given notice at least 48 hours prior to the blockage. Those residents and businesses shall be provided with a start and finish time when the blockage will occur. All access to properties will be restored each evening by 5 pm. Work on the project shall not commence before 8 am.

4.17 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

4.17.1 The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. He shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent rights and shall save the Owner harmless from loss on account thereof, except that the Owner shall be responsible for all such loss when a particular design, process or the product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is specified; but if the Contractor has reason to believe that the design, process or product specified is an infringement of a patent, he shall be responsible for such loss unless he promptly gives such information to the Owner's Representative.

4.18 INDEMNIFICATION

- 4.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and the Owner's Representative and their agents and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of the work, provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense (1) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (2) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission by the Contractor, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such negligence shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this Paragraph 4.18.
- 4.18.2 In any and all claims against the Owner or the Owner's Representative or any of their agents or employees by an employee of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this Paragraph 4.18 shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or any Subcontractor under workers' or workmen's compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.
- 4.18.3 The obligation of the Contractor under this Paragraph 4.18 shall not extend to the liability of the Owner's Representative, his agents or employees, arising out of (1) the preparation or approval of maps, drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, change orders, designs, or specifications.

ARTICLE 5

SUBCONTRACTORS

5.1 **DEFINITION**

- 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform any of the work at the site. The term "Subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender and means a Subcontractor or his authorized representative. The term "Subcontractor" does not include any separate Contractor or his Subcontractors.
- 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perform any of the work at the Site.

5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK

- 5.2.1 Unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents or the Bidding Documents, the Contractor, as soon as practicable after the award of the Contract, shall furnish to the Owner and the Owner's Representative in writing the names of the persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design) proposed for each of the principal portions of the work. The Owner's Representative will promptly reply to the Contractor in writing stating whether or not the Owner or the Owner's Representative, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity. Failure of the Owner or the Owner's Representative to reply promptly shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.
- 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with any such proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or the Owner's Representative has made reasonable objection under the provisions of Subparagraph 5.2.1. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom he has a reasonable objection.

5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATION

5.3.1 By an appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by the terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which the Contractor, by these Documents, assumes toward the Owner and the Owner's Representative. Said agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and the Owner's Representative under the Contract Documents with respect to the work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that the subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the Contractor, by these Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with his Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor will be bound by this Paragraph 5.3, and identify to the Subcontractor any terms and conditions of the proposed Subcontract which may be at variance with the Contract Documents. Each Subcontractor shall similarly make copies of such Documents available to his Subcontractors.

ARTICLE 6

WORK BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

6.1 OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS

- 6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform work related to the Project with his own forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other work on the site under these or similar Conditions of the Contract. If the Contractor claims that delay or additional cost is involved because of such action by the Owner, he shall make such claim as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
- 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other work on the site, the term "Contractor" in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.
- 6.1.3 The Owner will provide for the coordination of the work of his own forces and of each separate Contractor with the work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate therewith as provided in paragraph 6.2.
- 6.1.4 The Owner will contract with a design engineer for work during this Project. The Contractor **will** plan to work around and with this other firm.

6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY

6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and the separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and the execution of their work, and shall connect and coordinate his work

with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.

- 6.2.2 If any part of the Contractor's work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of the Owner or any separate Contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with the work, promptly report to the Owner's Representative any apparent discrepancies or defects in such other work that render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. Failure of the Contractor so to report shall constitute an acceptance of the Owner's or the separate Contractor's work as fit and proper to receive his work, except as to defects which may subsequently become apparent in such work by others.
- 6.2.3 Any costs caused by defective or ill-timed work shall be borne by the party responsible thereof.
- 6.2.4 Should the Contractor wrongfully cause damage to the work or property of the Owner, or to other work on the site, the Contractor shall promptly remedy such damage as provided in Subparagraph 10.2.5.
- 6.2.5 Should the Contractor wrongfully cause damage to the work or property of any separate Contractor, the Contractor shall upon due notice promptly attempt to settle with such other Contractor by agreement, or otherwise to resolve the dispute. If such separate Contractor sues or initiates an arbitration proceeding against the Owner on account of any damage alleged to have been caused by the Contractor, the Owner shall notify the Contractor, who shall defend such proceedings at the Contractor's expense, and if any judgment or award against the Owner arises therefrom, the Contractor shall pay or satisfy it and shall reimburse the Owner for all attorneys' fees and court or arbitration costs which the Owner has incurred.

6.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP

6.3.1 If a dispute arises between the Contractor and separate Contractors as to their responsibility for cleaning up as required by Paragraph 4.15, the Owner may clean up and charge the cost thereof to the Contractors responsible therefore as the Owner's Representative shall determine to be just.

ARTICLE 7

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

7.1 GOVERNING LAW

- 7.1.1 The Contract shall be governed by the law of the State of New Mexico.
- 7.1.2 The Owner and the Contractor each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract or sublet it as a whole without the written consent of the other, nor shall the Contractor assign any moneys due or to become due to him thereunder, without the previous written consent of the Owner.

7.2 WRITTEN NOTICE

7.2.1 Written notice shall be deemed to have been dully served if delivered in person to the individual or member of the firm or entity or to an officer of the corporation for whom it was intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the last business address known to him who gives the notice.

7.3 CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES

7.3.1 Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the other party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, claim shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury or damage.

7.4 PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND

7.4.1 The Contractor to whom the Contract is awarded shall furnish and pay for reputable and approved Performance and Labor and Material Payment Bonds, each for the full amount of the Contract Sum. Bonds shall be executed on standard AIA forms.

7.5 **RIGHTS AND REMEDIES**

- 7.5.1 The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.
- 7.5.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, the Owner's Representative, or the Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

7.6 TESTS

- 7.6.1 This work shall consist of compaction testing, material testing, and other testing in accordance with the plans and specifications. If the Contract Document, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction require any portion of the work to be inspected, tested or approved, the Contractor shall give the Owner's Representative timely notice of its readiness so the Owner's Representative may observe such inspection, testing or approval. The Contractor shall bear all costs of such inspections, tests or approvals. Tests specifically called for by specifications shall be made by a professional testing laboratory acceptable to the Owner's Representative, and the Contractor shall employ same and pay all charges in connection therewith. Records of tests shall be delivered to the Owner's Representative in duplicate on acceptable forms.
- 7.6.2 If the Owner's Representative determines that any work requires special inspection, testing, or approval which Subparagraph 7.6.1 does not include, he will, upon written authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to order such special inspection, testing or approval, and the Contractor shall give notice as provided in Subparagraph 7.6.1. If such special inspection or testing reveals a failure of the work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall bear all costs thereof, including compensation for the Owner's Representative's additional services made necessary by such failure; otherwise the Owner shall bear such costs, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued.

7.7 INTEREST

7.7.1 The Owner will not pay interest on payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 8

TIME

8.1 **DEFINITIONS**

- 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, the Contract Time is the period of time allotted in the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the work as defined in Subparagraph 8.1.3, including authorized adjustments thereto.
- 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the work is the date established in a Notice to Proceed. If there is no Notice to Proceed, it shall be the date of the Owner-Contractor Agreement or such other date as may be established therein.
- 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion of the work or designated portion thereof is the date certified by the Owner's Representative and approved by the Owner when construction is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so the Owner can occupy or utilize the work or designated portion thereof for the use for which it is intended.

8.1.4 The term "day" as used in the Contract Document shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically designated.

8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION

- 8.2.1 All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are the essence of the Contract.
- 8.2.2 The Contractor shall begin the work on the date of commencement as defined in Subparagraph 8.1.2. He shall carry the work forward expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time.

8.3 DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME

- 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by any act or neglect of the Owner or the Owner's Representative or by any employees of either, or by any separate Contractor employed by the Owner or by changes ordered in the work, or by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the Contractor's control or by delay authorized by the Owner pending arbitration, or by any other cause which the Owner's Representative determines may justify the delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change Order for such reasonable time as the Owner's Representative may determine.
- 8.3.2 Any claim for extension of time shall be made in writing to the Owner's Representative not more than twenty days after the commencement of the delay; otherwise it shall be waived. In the case of a continuing delay, only one claim is necessary. The Contractor shall provide an estimate of the probable effect of such delay on the progress of the work.
- 8.3.3 If written agreement is made stating the dates upon which interpretations shall be furnished, then no claim for delay shall be allowed on account of failure to furnish such interpretations until fifteen days after written request is made for them, and not then unless such claim is reasonable.
- 8.3.4 This Paragraph 8.3 does not exclude the recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 9

PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

9.1 CONTRACT SUM

9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Owner-Contractor Agreement and including authorized adjustments thereto, is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for the performance of the work under the Contract Documents.

9.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

9.2.1 Before the first Application for Payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner's Representative a schedule of values allocated to the various portions of the work, prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Owner's Representative may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Owner's Representative, shall be used only as a basis for the Contractor's Applications for payment.

9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

9.3.1 At least ten days before the date for each progress payment established in the Owner-Contractor Agreement, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner's Representative an itemized Application for Payment, notarized if required, supported by such data substantiating the Contractor's right to payment as the Owner or the Owner's Representative may require and reflecting retainage, if any, as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents. On the Owner's

Representative's recommendation, and after the Project is 50% or more complete, and if the Project is on schedule, the retainage may be reduced with the approval of the Owner. The full Contract retainage may be reinstated if the manner of completion of the work and its progress do not remain satisfactory to the Owner's Representative and the Owner.

- 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments will be made on account of materials or equipment not incorporated in the work but delivered and suitably stored at the site; and, if approved in advance by the Owner payments may similarly be made for materials or equipment suitably stored at some other location agreed upon in writing. Payments for materials or equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon submission by the Contractor of bills of sale or such other procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner's title to such materials or equipment or otherwise protect the Owner's interest, including applicable insurance and transportation to the site for those materials and equipment stored off the site.
- 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all work, materials and equipment covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner either by incorporation in the construction or upon the receipt of payment by the Contractor, whichever occurs first, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interest or encumbrances hereinafter referred to in this Article 9 as "liens"; and that no work, materials or equipment covered by an Application for Payment will have been acquired by the Contractor, or by any other person performing work at the site or furnishing materials or equipment for the Project, subject to an agreement under which an interest therein or an encumbrance thereon is retained by the seller or otherwise imposed by the Contractor or such other person.

9.4 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT

- 9.4.1 The Owner's Representative will, within seven days after the receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, either issue a Certificate for Payment to the Owner with a copy to the Contractor for such amount as the Owner's Representative determines is properly due, or notify the Contractor in writing of his reasons for withholding a Certificate as provided in Subparagraph 9.6.1.
- 9.4.2 The issuance of Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Owner's Representative to the Owner, based on his observations at the site and the data comprising the Application for Payment, that the work has progressed to the point indicated; that, to the best of his knowledge, information and belief, the quality of the work is in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests required by or performed under the Contract Documents correctable prior to completion, and to any specific qualifications stated in his Certificate); and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. However, by issuing a Certificate for Payment, the Owner's Representative shall not thereby be deemed to represent that he has made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the work or that he has reviewed the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or that he has made any examination to ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used the moneys previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.

9.5 PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- 9.5.1 After the Owner's Representative has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and within the time provided in the Contract Documents.
- 9.5.2 The Contractor shall promptly pay each Subcontractor upon receipt of payment from the Owner, out of the amount paid to the Contractor on account of such Subcontractor's work, the amount to which said Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting the percentage actually retained, if any, from payments to the Contractor on account of such Subcontractor's work. The Contractor shall, by an appropriate agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payment to his Subcontractors in similar manner.
- 9.5.3 The Owner's Representative may, on request and at his discretion, furnish to any Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding the percentages of completion or the amounts applied for by the Contractor and the action taken thereon by the Owner's Representative on account of work done by such Subcontractor.

- 9.5.4 Neither the Owner nor the Owner's Representative shall have any obligation to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys to any Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.
- 9.5.5 No Certificate for progress payment, no progress payment, nor any partial or entire use of occupancy of the Project by the Owner shall constitute an acceptance of any work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.

9.6 PAYMENT WITHHELD

- 9.6.1 The Owner's Representative may decline to certify payment and may withhold his Certificate in whole or in part, to the extent necessary to reasonably protect the Owner, if in his opinion he is unable to make representations to the Owner as provided in Subparagraph 9.4.2.
- 9.6.2. If the Owner's Representative is unable to make representations to the Owner, as provided in Subparagraph 9.4.2 and to certify payment in the amount of the Application, he will notify the Contractor as provided in Subparagraph 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Owner's Representative cannot agree on a revised amount, the Owner's Representative will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which he is able to make such representations to the Owner. The Owner's Representative may also decline to certify payment, or because of subsequently discovered evidence or subsequent observations, he may nullify the whole or any part of any Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as may be necessary in his opinion to protect the Owner from loss because of:
 - A) Defective work not remedied;
 - B) Third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims;
 - C) Failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or equipment;
 - D) Reasonable evidence that the work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;
 - E) Damage to the work of another Contractor;
 - F) Reasonable evidence that the work will not be completed within the Contract Time; or,
 - G) Failure to carry out the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 9.6.2 When the above grounds in Subparagraph 9.6.1 are removed or remedied, payment shall be made for amounts withheld because of them.

9.7 FAILURE OF PAYMENT

9.7.1 If the Owner's Representative does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days after the date established in the Contract Documents any amount certified by the Owner's Representative, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days' written notice to the Owner and the Owner's Representative, stop the work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor's reasonable costs of shut-down, delay and start-up, which shall be effected by appropriate Change Order in accordance with Paragraph 12.3.

9.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

9.8.1 When the Contractor considers that the work, or a designated portion thereof which is acceptable to the Owner, is substantially complete as defined in Subparagraph 8.1.3, the Contractor shall prepare for submission to the Owner's Representative a list of items to be completed or corrected. The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all work in accordance with the Contract Documents. When the Owner's Representative, with the Owner, on the basis of an inspection determines that the work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, he will then prepare a Certificate of Substantial Completion Form, AIA

Document G704-1978, which shall establish the Date of Substantial Completion, shall state the responsibilities of the Owner and the Contractor for security and maintenance, and the time within which the Contractor shall complete the items listed therein. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Final Completion of the work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Contractor and the Owner for their written acceptance of the responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate.

9.8.2 Upon Substantial Completion of the work or designated portion thereof and upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Owner's Representative, the Owner shall make payment, reflecting adjustment in retainage, if any, for such work or portion thereof, as provided in the Contract Documents.

9.9 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT

- 9.9.1 Upon receipt of written notice that the work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Owner's Representative will promptly make such inspection and, if he finds the work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, he will promptly issue final Certificate for Payment stating that, to the best of his observations and inspections, the work has been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor and noted in said Final Certificate, is due and payable. The Owner's Representative's Final Certificate of payment will constitute a further representation that the conditions precedent to the Contractor's being entitled to final payment as set forth in Subparagraph 9.9.2 have been fulfilled.
- 9.9.2 Neither the final payment nor the remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to the Owner's Representative (1) an affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the work for which the Owner or his property might in any way be responsible have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, and (3) if required by the Owner, other data establishing payment or satisfaction of all such obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designed by the Owner. If any Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner the Contractor may furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify him against any such lien. If any such lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all moneys that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees.
- 9.9.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor or by the issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Owner's Representative so confirms, the Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Owner's Representative and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance for that portion of the work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance for work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Contract Document, and if bonds have been furnished as provided in Paragraph 7.4, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the work fully completed shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Owner's Representative prior to certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.
- 9.9.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Owner except those arising from:
 - A) Unsettled liens;
 - B) Faulty or defective work appearing after Substantial Completion;
 - C) Failure of the work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; and
 - D) Terms of any special warranties required by the Contract Documents.
- 9.9.5 The acceptance of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Contractor except those previously made in writing and identified by the Contractor as unsettled at the time of the final Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 10

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

10.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS

10.1.1 The Contractor shall be responsible in initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the work.

10.2. SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

- 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
 - 10.2.1.1 All employees on the work and all other persons who may be affected thereby;
 - 10.2.1.2 All the work and all materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, under the care, custody or control of the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors; and
 - 10.2.1.3 Other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction.
- 10.2.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property or their protection from damage, injury or loss.
- 10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and progress of the work, all reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent utilities.
- 10.2.4 When the use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment is necessary for the execution of the work, the Contractor shall exercise the utmost care and shall carry on such activities under the supervision of properly qualified personnel.
- 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy all damage or loss (other than damage or loss insured under paragraph 11.3) to any property referred to in Clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable to the acts or omissions of the Owner or the Owner's Representative or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to his obligations under Paragraph 4.18.
- 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of his organization at the site whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor's Superintendent unless otherwise designated by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and the Owner's Representative.
- 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not load or permit any part of the work to be loaded so as to endanger its safety.

10.3 EMERGENCIES

10.3.1 In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at his reasonable discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on account of emergency work shall be determined as provided in Article 12 for changes in the work.

ARTICLE 11

INSURANCE

11.1 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE

- 11.1.1. The selected Bidder shall purchase and maintain, with a company or companies licensed to do business in the State of New Mexico, Liability and Property Insurance as required by law.
- 11.1.2. The insurance shall be in limits not less than those stated in the insurance section of the boilerplate Agreement, enclosed in the Bid package, or greater if required by law.
- 11.1.3. The insurance coverage shall include worker's compensation, employers liability, comprehensive general liability (Premises Operations, independent contractual liability, explosion and collapse hazard, underground hazard, personal injury), Comprehensive automobile liability (owned and hired), excess liability (umbrella form), and all-risk builder's risk.
- 11.1.4. A valid certificate of insurance must be submitted to the Owner prior to issuance of a Notice-to-Proceed.
- 11.1.5 All insurance coverage must be maintained for the entire life of the project. Products and completed operations coverage shall be maintained for a minimum period of one (1) year after final payment.

11.2 OWNER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE

11.2.1 The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining his own liability insurance and, at his option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect him against all claims which may arise from operations under the Contract.

11.3 PROPERTY INSURANCE

- 11.3.1 The Contractor shall maintain traditional course of construction insurance upon the work at the site for at least the actual cash value thereof. The traditional course of construction insurance shall cover the interests of the Owner, the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors in the work. The insurance shall insure against at least the following perils: fire extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief, and flood insurance with a deductible of no more than \$25,000. The Contractor shall bear the cost of such insurance and include its cost in the Bid.
- 11.3.2 Any loss insured under Subparagraph 11.3.1 is to be adjusted with the Owner and made payable to the Owner as trustee for the insured, as their interests may appear subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause. The Owner shall deposit the proceeds in a separate account and shall distribute them in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest, including the Owner, may reach. The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor a just share of any insurance proceeds which the Contractor receives and shall require by written agreement signed by the Subcontractor that the Subcontractor will make payments to his Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. If after such loss no other special agreement is made, replacement of damaged work shall be covered by an appropriate order.
- 11.3.3 To the extent permitted under their respective property insurance policies, the Owner and the Contractor hereby waive all rights, each against the other, for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by Insurance obtained pursuant to this Article 11 or any other property insurance applicable to the work, except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of such Insurance held by the Owner as trustee. The Owner or the Contractor, as appropriate, shall require the Owner's Representative, other Contractors, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to similarly waive rights of subrogation or property insurers.
- 11.3.4 If the Owner finds it necessary to occupy use of any portion of the work prior to Substantial Completion, such occupancy or use shall not commence prior to the time mutually agreed to by the Owner and the Contractor and, if required by the applicable insurance or self insurance coverage not prior to the time the builder's risk property insurer has consented to such occupancy or use. The Contractor's consent to such occupancy or use shall not be

unreasonably withheld.

11.4 LOSS OF USE INSURANCE

11.4.1 The Owner, at his option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will insure him against loss of use of his property due to fire or other hazards, however caused.

ARTICLE 12

CHANGES IN THE WORK

12.1 CHANGE ORDERS

- 12.1.1 A Change Order is a written order to the Contractor signed by the Owner's Representative and the Contractor and approved in writing by the Owner. A Change Order may be issued only after the execution of the Contract and shall be the only means used to order changes in the work for which the Contractor requires additional compensation, changes to the Contract Time, or changes to the Contract Sum. Minor changes in the work for which the Contractor requires no additional compensation or time shall be executed in accordance with the provision of Subparagraph 12.3.1.
- 12.1.2 The Owner, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes in the work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the Contract Sum and the Contract Time being adjusted accordingly. All such changes in the work shall be authorized by Change Order and shall be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents.
- 12.1.3 The cost or credit to the Owner resulting from a change in the work shall be determined in one or more of the following ways:
 - A) By mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit evaluation;
 - B) By unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;
 - C) By cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or percentage fee; or
 - D) By the method provided in Subparagraph 12.1.4.
- If none of the methods set forth in Clauses 12.1.2 or 12.1.3 is agreed upon, the Contractor, provided he receives a 12.1.4 written order signed by the Owner, shall promptly proceed with the work involved. The cost of such work shall the be determined by the Owner's Representative on the basis of the reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing the work attributable to the change, including, in the case of an increase in the Contract Sum, a reasonable allowance for overhead and profit. In such case, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Owner's Representative may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data for inclusion in a Change Order. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, cost shall be limited to the following: cost of materials, including sales tax and cost of delivery; cost of labor, including social security, old age and unemployment insurance, and fringe benefits, required by agreement or custom, workers' or workmen's compensation insurance; bond premiums; rental value of equipment and machinery; and the additional costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change. Pending final determination of cost to the Owner payments on account shall be made on the Owner's Representative's Certificate for payment. The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for any deletion or change which results in a net decrease in the Contract Sum will be the amount of the actual net cost as confirmed by the Owner's Representative. When both additions and credits covering related work or substitutions are involved in any one change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of the net increase, if any, with respect to that change.
- 12.1.5 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if the quantities originally contemplated are so changed in a proposed Change Order that application of the agreed unit prices to the quantities of work proposed will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or the Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be

equitably adjusted.

- 12.1.6 By submission of a Bid, the Contractor agrees and binds himself to the following method of calculating Change Order costs. The Owner also agrees to the following method of calculating the cost of any changes to the Contract. With each proposal for a change in the amount of the Contract, the Contractor shall submit an itemized breakdown of all increases or decreases in the cost of the Contractor's and all Subcontractor's and Sub-subcontractor's work to include at least the following detail in the general order listed:
 - A) Material quantities and unit costs;
 - B) Labor amounts and hourly rates (identified with specific items of material to be placed or operation to be performed);
 - C) Costs inherent in use of Contractor/Sub-subcontractor owned equipment;
 - D) Equipment rental, if any;
 - E) Workmen's compensation and public liability insurance;
 - F) General administration, overhead, supervision, project insurance and profit, based on the following schedule:

Subtotal before Applying the Percentage Shown	<u>\$500 & Less</u>	<u>Over \$500</u>
Contractor for work performed by his own forces	22%	19%
Contractor for work performed by Subcontractor	10%	8%
Subcontractor for work performed by his own forces	18%	15%
Subcontractor for work performed by Sub-subcontractor	10%	8%
Sub-subcontractor for work performed by his own forces	18%	15%
Englanment towns and ELCA and ELTA, and		

- G) Employment taxes under FICA and FUTA; and
- H) State gross receipts tax (Contractor only).
- 12.1.7 The quotation for work under a Change Order shall be binding for sixty (60) days from the date submitted by the Contractor.

12.2 CONCEALED CONDITIONS

- 12.2.1 Should concealed conditions encountered in the performance of the work below the surface of the ground or should concealed or unknown conditions in an existing structure be at variance with the conditions indicated by the Contract Documents, or should unknown physical conditions below the surface of the ground or should concealed or unknown conditions in an existing structure of an unusual nature differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the Character provided for in this Contract, be encountered, the Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted by Change Order upon verified claim by either party made within twenty days after the first observance of the conditions.
- 12.2.2 If the Contractor wishes to make a claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, he shall give the Owner's Representative written notice thereof within twenty days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim. This notice shall be given by the Contractor before proceeding to execute the work, except in an emergency endangering life or property, in which case the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with Paragraph 10.3. No

such claim shall be valid unless so made. If such claims are justified and the Owner authorizes an increase in the Contract Sum, the Owner and the Contractor shall proceed to negotiate the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum. If the Owner and the Contractor cannot agree on the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, it shall be determined by the Owner's Representative. Any change in the Contract Sum resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order.

12.2.3 If the Contractor claims that additional cost is involved because of, but not limited to, (1) any written interpretation, (2) any order by the Owner to stop the work pursuant to Paragraph 3.3 where the Contractor was not at fault, (3) any written order for a minor change in the work issued pursuant to Paragraph 12.3.1or (4) failure of payment by the Owner pursuant to Paragraph 9.7, the Contractor shall make such claims as provided in Subparagraph 12.2.2.

12.3 MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK

12.3.1 The Owner's Representative will have authority to order minor changes in the work not involving an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. Such changes shall be effected by written order and shall be binding on the Owner and the Contractor. The Contractor shall carry out such written orders promptly.

ARTICLE 13

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

13.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK

- 13.1.1 If any portion of the work should be covered contrary to the request of the Owner's Representative or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by the Owner's Representative, be uncovered for his observation and shall be replaced at the Contractor's expense.
- 13.1.2 If any portion of the work has been covered which the Owner's Representative has not specifically requested to observe prior to being covered, the Owner's Representative may request to see such work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such work is found to be in accordance with the Contract Documents, the cost of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate Change Order, be charged to the Owner. If such work is found to be not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay such costs unless it is found that this condition was caused by the Owner or a separate Contractor as provided in Article 6, in which case the Owner shall be responsible for the payment of such costs.

13.2 CORRECTION OF WORK

- 13.2.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct all work rejected by the Owner's Representative as defective or as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether observed before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such rejected work, including compensation for the Owner's Representative's additional services made necessary thereby.
- 13.2.2 If, within one year after the Date of Substantial Completion of the work or designated portion thereof or within one year after acceptance by the Owner of designated equipment or within such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a specific written acceptance of such condition. This obligation shall survive termination of the Contract. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition.
- 13.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site all portions of the work which are defective or non-conforming and which have not been corrected under Subparagraphs 4.5, 13.2.1 and 13.2.2, unless removal is specifically waived in writing by the Owner.

- 13.2.4 If the Contractor fails to correct defective or non-conforming work as provided in Subparagraph 4.5.1, 13.2.1 and 13.2.2, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Paragraph 3.4.
- 13.2.5 If the Contractor does not proceed with the correction of such defective or non-conforming work within a reasonable time fixed by written notice from the Owner's Representative, the Owner may remove it and may store the materials or equipment at the expense of the Contractor. If the Contractor does not pay the cost of such removal and storage within ten days thereafter, the Owner may upon ten additional days' written notice sell such work at auction or at private sale and shall account for the net proceeds thereof, after deducting all the costs that should have been borne by the Contractor including compensation for the Owner's Representative's additional services made necessary thereby. If such proceeds of sale do not cover all costs which the Contractor should have borne, the difference shall be charged to the Contractor and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued. If the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.
- 13.2.6 The Contractor shall bear the cost of making good all work of the Owner or separate Contractors destroyed or damaged by such correction or removal.
- 13.2.7 Nothing contained in this Paragraph 13.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to any other obligation which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents, including Paragraph 4.5 hereof. The establishment of the time period of one year after the Date of Substantial Completion or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any warranty required by the Contract Documents relates only to the Contract to correct the work and has no relationship to the time within which his obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor's liability with respect to his obligations other than specifically to correct the work.

13.3 ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE OR NON-CONFORMING WORK

13.3.1 If the Owner prefers to accept defective or non-conforming work, he may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect a reduction in the Contract Sum where appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made.

ARTICLE 14

TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

14.1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR

14.1.1 If the work is stopped for a period of thirty days under an order of court or other public authority having jurisdiction, or as a result of an act of government, such as a declaration of a national emergency making materials unavailable, through no act or fault of the Contractor or a Sub-contractor or their agents or employees or any other persons performing any of the work under a contract with the Contractor, or because the Owner's Representative has not issued a Certificate for payment as provided in Paragraph 9.7, or because the Owner has not made payment thereon as provided in paragraph 9.7, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days' written notice to the Owner and the Owner's Representative, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for all work executed and for any proven loss sustained upon any materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, including reasonable profit and damages.

14.2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER

14.2.1 If the Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, or if he makes a general assignment for the benefit of his creditors, or if a receiver is appointed on account of his insolvency, or if he persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails, except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply enough properly skilled workmen or proper materials, or if he fails to make prompt payment to Subcontractors for material or labor, or persistently disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction, or otherwise is guilty of a substantial violation of a provision of the Contract Documents, then the Owner, upon certification by the Owner's
Representative that sufficient cause exists to justify such action, may without prejudice to any right or remedy and after giving the Contractor and his surety, if any, seven days written notice, terminate the employment of the Contractor and take possession of the site and of all material, tools, construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor and may finish the work by whatever method he may deem expedient. In such case, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the work is finished.

- 14.2.2 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds the costs of finishing the work, including compensation for the Owner's Representative's additional services made necessary thereby, and any damages sustained by the Owner as a result of the Contractor's breach, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or to the Owner, as the case may be, shall be certified by the Owner's Representative upon application, in the manner provided in paragraph 9.4 and this obligation to the Contractor or to the Owner, as the case may be, shall be certified by the Owner provided in Paragraph 9.4 and this obligation for payment shall survive the termination of the Contract.
- 14.2.3 In the event that the Project is abandoned by the Owner, the Owner may terminate this contract at any time by giving at least seven (7) days notice to the Contractor. In the event of termination, all work completed shall become the property of the Owner. The Contractor shall be entitled to receive compensation for actual work satisfactorily completed hereunder, including reimbursable expense authorized by the Owner which are then due.
- 14.2.4 In the event the Contractor fails to perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner may terminate the Contract after giving the Contractor five (5) working days notice.

ARTICLE 15

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

- 15.1 The Contractor shall maintain policies of employment as follows:
 - 15.1.1 The Contractor, all Subcontractors, and all Sub-subcontractors shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex or national origin. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated without discrimination during employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous place, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the policies of non-discrimination.
 - 15.1.2 The Contractor, all Subcontractors, and all Sub-subcontractors shall, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by them or on their behalf, state that all qualified applicant will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, religion, color, sex, or national origin.

ARTICLE 16

MINIMUM WAGE RATES

16.1 The project is subject to *New Mexico Wage Decision # SF-15-1304A* and the City of Santa Fe's Minimum Wage Ordinance both attached.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

(SECTION 00800)

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS (SECTION 00800)

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

This document is intended to be used in conjunction with the General Conditions of the Contract.

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS

- 1.0 DEFINITIONS The following definitions shall apply through the Bidding Documents or Contract Documents unless otherwise specified.
 - 1.1 ADDENDUM: Written or graphic instrument issued prior to the execution of the Contract which modifies or interprets the Bidding Documents, including Drawings and Specifications, by additions, deletions, clarifications or corrections. Addenda will become part of the Contract Documents when the Construction Contract is executed. Plural: ADDENDA
 - 1.2 ADDITIVE OR DEDUCTIVE ALTERNATE BID: Amount stated in the Bid to be added or deducted from the amount of the Base Bid if the corresponding change in project scope or alternate materials and/or methods of construction is accepted.
 - 1.3 BASE BID: Amount of money stated in the Bid as the sum for which the Bidder offers to perform the work, not including that work for which Alternate Bids are also submitted.
 - 1.4 BID: A complete and properly signed proposal to do the work or designated portion thereof for the sums stipulated therein, supported by data called for by the Bidding Documents.
 - 1.5 BID LOT: A major item of work for which a separate quotation or proposal is requested.
 - 1.6 BIDDER: One who submits a Bid for a prime contract with the Owner, as distinct from a Subcontractor, who submits a Bid to a Bidder. Technically, a Bidder is not a Contractor on a specific project until a contract exists between him and the Owner.
 - 1.7 BIDDING DOCUMENTS: Documents that include the Invitation for Bid, Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Form, other sample bidding and contract forms, and the proposed Contract Documents, including any Addenda issued prior to receipt of Bids. The Contract Documents proposed for the work consist of the Owner-Contractor Agreement, the Conditions of the Construction Contract (General, Supplementary, and Other Conditions), the Drawings, the Specifications, and all Addenda issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of the Contract.
 - 1.8 DAY: Calendar day, which is every day shown on the calendar, beginning and ending at midnight.
 - 1.9 CENTRAL PURCHASING OFFICE: The Central Purchasing Office is the City of Santa Fe Purchasing Department.
 - 1.10 GOVERNING AUTHORITY: The Governing Authority of the City of Santa Fe for the execution of construction contracts is the Mayor and City Manager.
 - 1.11 INVITATION FOR BID: The Bidding Documents utilized for soliciting sealed Bids. "Invitation to Bid" shall have the same meaning as "Invitation for Bid".
 - 1.12 OWNER: The City of Santa Fe, New Mexico.
 - 1.13 PROCUREMENT OFFICER: The Director of the Purchasing Division, or a designee authorized to enter into or administer contracts and make written determination with respect thereto.
 - 1.14 RESPONSIBLE BIDDER: A Bidder who submits a responsive Bid and who has furnished, when required,

information and data to prove that his financial resources, production or service facilities, personnel, service reputation, and experience are adequate to make satisfactory delivery of the services, construction, or items of tangible personal property described in the Bidding Documents (13-1-82, NMSA 1978).

- 1.15 SUCCESSFUL BIDDER: The lowest qualified and responsible Bidder to whom the Owner, on the basis of the Owner's evaluation, makes an award.
- 1.16 UNIT PRICES: Amounts stated in the Contract as prices per unit of measurement for materials or services as described in the Contract Documents.
- 1.17 USER: The City of Santa Fe or agencies or designated entity for whose use the Project is being constructed.

2.0 CONTRACT AUDIT

The Owner shall be entitled to audit the books and records of a Contractor or any Subcontractor under any negotiated contract or subcontract other than a firm fixed-price contract to the extent that such books and records relate to the performance of such contract or subcontract. Such books and records shall be maintained by the Contractor for a period of three years from the date of final payment under the prime contract and by the Subcontractor for a period of three years from the date of final payment under the subcontract unless a shorter period is otherwise authorized in writing (13-1-161, NMSA 1978).

3.0 DEBARRED OR SUSPENDED CONTRACTORS

A business (Contractor, Subcontractor, or Supplier) that has either been debarred or suspended pursuant to the requirements of Sections 13-1-177 through 13-1-180, and 13-4-11 through 13-4-17, NMSA 1978, or City Purchasing provisions shall not be permitted to do business with the City and shall not be considered for award of contract during the period for which it is debarred or suspended.

4.0 BRIBES, GRATUITIES, AND KICK-BACKS

- 4.1 It is illegal in the State of New Mexico for any public employee to solicit or accept anything of value in connection with award of this Bid and for any person to offer or pay anything of value to any such public employee (30-24-1 through 30-24-2, NMSA 1978).
- 4.2 Pursuant to Section 13-1-191, NMSA 1978, reference is hereby made to the Criminal Laws of New Mexico (including 30-24-1, 30-23-2, and 30-41-1 through 3-41-3, NMSA 1978), which prohibit bribes, kick-backs, and gratuities and violation of which constitutes a felon. Further, the Procurement Code (13-1-28 through 13-1-199, NMSA 1978), imposes civil and criminal penalties for its violation

5.0 PROTESTS (CITY PURCHASING MANUAL)

- 5.1 Any Contractor who is aggrieved in connection with a procurement may protest to the City Purchasing Agent and the Owner. The protest should be made in writing within twenty-four (24) hours after the facts or occurrences; giving rise thereto, but in no case, not more than fifteen (15) calendar days after the facts or occurrences giving rise thereto.
- 5.2 In the event of a timely protest under the City Purchasing Manual, the City Purchasing Agent and the Owner shall not proceed further with the procurement unless the City Purchasing Agent or the Owner makes a determination that the award of contract is necessary to protect substantial interests of the Owner.
- 5.3 The City Purchasing Agent or his designee shall have the authority to take any action reasonably necessary to resolve a protest of an aggrieved Contractor concerning a procurement.
- 5.4 This authority shall be exercised in accordance with adopted regulations, but shall not include the authority to award money damages or attorneys' fees.

- 5.5 The City Purchasing Agent or his designee shall promptly issue a determination relating to the protest. The determination shall:
 - A) State the reasons for the action taken; and,
 - B) Inform the protestant of the right to judicial review of the determination pursuant to the City Purchasing Manual.
- 5.6 A copy of the determination issued under the City Purchasing Manual shall be mailed to the protestant.

6.0 CONTRACT BOND REQUIREMENTS

- 6.1 The Successful Bidder, where the Contract Price exceeds twenty five thousand dollars (\$25,000), shall post a one hundred percent (100%) Performance Bond and a one hundred percent (100%) Labor and Material Payment Bond. Bonds shall be executed on Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond forms attached hereto, with amount payable conforming to the terms of the Contract. Surety shall be a company licensed to do business in the State of New Mexico and acceptable to the Owner.
- 6.2 Personal sureties may be accepted if the Owner so determines in advance, but in such case the amount of the Bond shall be the full Contract Price, and the sureties shall justify under oath in amounts above liabilities and exemptions aggregating double the amount of the Bond.
- 6.3 Special attention of Bidders is called to the requirements of Section 13-4-18 through 13-4-20, NMSA 1978 regarding a Contractor who does not have his principal place of business in the State of New Mexico for all taxes due arising out of construction services rendered under the Contract.
- 6.3.1 The right to sue on this Bond accrues only to the Owner and the parties to whom Sections 13-4-18 through 13-4-20, NMSA 1978 grant such right; and any such right shall be exercised only in accordance with the provisions and limitations of said statues.

7.0 NON-RESIDENT CONTRACTOR'S REQUIREMENTS REGARDING GROSS RECEIPTS TAX SURETY BOND

- 7.1 Section 7-1-55A, NMSA 1978 provides that any person (as defined in Section 7-1-3, NMSA 1978) engaged in the construction business who does not have his principal place of business in New Mexico and enters into a prime construction contract to be performed in this State shall, at the time such contract is entered into, furnish the Director of the Revenue Division, Taxation and Revenue Department, or his delegate with a surety bond or other acceptable security in a sum equivalent to the gross receipts to be paid under the contract multiplied by the applicable rate of the gross receipts tax imposed by Section 7-9-4, NMSA 1978 to secure payment of the tax imposed on the gross receipts from the contract, and shall obtain a certificate from the Director of the Revenue Division, Taxation and Revenue Department, or his delegate that the requirements of this paragraph have been met.
- 7.2 If the total sum to be paid under the contract is changed by ten percent or more after the date the surety bond or other acceptable security is furnished, to the Director or his delegate, such person shall increase or decrease, as the case may be, the amount of the bond or security within fourteen days after the change (7-1-55B, NMSA 1978).
- 7.3 In addition to the above requirements, the Contractor will be subject to all the requirements of the City Procurement Code.

8.0 CONTRACTOR'S GROSS RECEIPTS TAX REGISTRATION

- 8.1 Section 7-10-4, NMSA 1978 provides that any person (as defined in Section 7-10-3, NMSA 1978) performing services for the City of Santa Fe, as those terms are used in the Gross Receipts and Compensating Tax Act (Section 7-10-1 to 7-10-5, NMSA 1978), must be registered and be issued an identification number with the Revenue Division of the Taxation and Revenue Department to pay the gross receipts tax.
- 8.2 The identification number is needed to properly complete the approval process of the contract; therefore, so as to cause no delay in the processing, the Contractor must register with the State of New Mexico, Taxation and Revenue

Department. For information contact:

Revenue Division Taxation and Revenue Department Manual Lujan Building 1200 St. Francis Drive Santa Fe, New Mexico 87503 (505) 988-2290

8.3 If any person who performs services for the City of Santa Fe is not registered to pay the gross receipts tax, the City shall withhold payment of the amount due until the person has presented evidence of registration with the Taxation and Revenue Department to pay the gross receipts tax.

9.0 CONTRACT WITH NONRESIDENT PERSON OR PARTNERSHIPS OR UNADMITTED FOREIGN CORPORATIONS; AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

9.1 Special attention of Bidders is called to requirements of Sections 13-4-21 through 13-4-24, NMSA 1978, whereby a public works contract with a nonresident person or partnership or foreign corporation not authorized to do business in the State shall contain a specific provision designating an agent resident within the State, and his address, upon whom process and writs in any action or proceeding against such business may be served in any action arising out of such contract.

10.0 STATE ALLOWANCES

10.1 The Contractor shall purchase the "Allowed Materials" as directed by the Owner through the Owner's Representative/Engineer on the basis of the lowest and the best Bid of at least three competitive Bids. If the actual price for purchasing the "Allowed Materials" is more or less than the "Cash Allowance", the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly. The adjustment in Contract Price made on the basis of the purchase price without additional charges for overhead, profit, insurance, or any other incidental expenses. The cost of installation of the "Allowed Materials" shall be included in the applicable section of the Specifications covering the work.

11.0 MINIMUM WAGE RATES

11.1 This project is subject to New Mexico State Wage Rate *Wage Decision # SF-15-1304 A* and the City of Santa Fe's Minimum Wage Ordinance both of which are attached.

12.0 FORM OF CHANGE ORDER AND CHANGE ORDER NOTICE TO PROCEED

12.1 The provided forms issued by the Owner are to be utilized by the Contractor, Owner's Representative/Engineer, and the Owner pursuant to the requirements of the General Conditions.

13.0 STATE OF NEW MEXICO, CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRIES DIVISION (CID)

13.1 The Contractor, at his own expense, shall secure the required building permits from the State CID as required for this Project. Contractor shall adhere to the requirements established for inspections.

14.0 CITY OF SANTA FE REQUIREMENTS

- 14.1 The General Contractor shall include in the Bid the cost of all landfill dumping fees; additionally, the Contractor shall be responsible that all rubble, excess materials, etc., are disposed of at an approved, legal dumping site.
- 14.2 Construction debris and human debris must be cleaned from the site before contractor leaves site daily.
- 14.3 The Contractor shall adhere to any applicable City of Santa Fe ordinances, resolutions, guidelines, and other requirements to complete the work.

CONTRACT EXHIBITS

- Exhibit I Wage Rates and Labor Enforcement Fund Registration
- Exhibit II Technical Specifications
- Exhibit III Standard Project Details
- Exhibit IV City of Santa Fe Minimum Wage Ordinance
- Exhibit V Construction Drawings

EXHIBIT I – WAGE RATES AND LABOR ENFORCEMENT FUND REGISTRATION

1.0 WAGE RATES

This project is subject to the Minimum Wage Rates as determined by the New Mexico State Labor & Industrial Commission pursuant to Chapter 13, Section 13-14-11, NMSA 1978. The Minimum Wage Rates to be paid by the Contractor and any Subcontractors to their employees on this project are as listed in the New Mexico State Labor and Industrial Commission Minimum Wage Rate Decision Number *SF-15-1304 A*.

A copy of this decision is bound in these documents immediately following this page. The Contractor shall submit within three days of the notice of award, a complete sub-contractor list and Statements of Intent (SOI) to pay Prevailing Wages for each contractor and subcontractor. In addition, all Contractors and sub-contractors shall submit one (1) certified copy of the project bi-weekly payroll, as required, to the City of Santa Fe Water Division, 801 W. San Mateo Road, Santa Fe, NM 87505, C/O Project Engineer, not later than five (5) working days after the close of each payroll period. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls of all sub-contractors. In addition, the contractor must ensure that when the project has been completed, the Affidavits of Wages Paid (AWP) is sent to the City of Santa Fe, Water Division at the same address as provided above.

This project is subject to the City of Santa Fe <u>Minimum Wage Rate Ordinance Compliance</u>: under Ordinance No. 2003-8, passed by the Santa Fe City Council on February 26, 2003 as well as any subsequent changes to the ordinance throughout the term of this contract.

(New Mexico State Labor & Industrial Commission Wage Rate Decision **WGD** & City of Santa Fe Minimum Wage Ordinance 2003-8 Following This Sheet)

<u>Effective immediately</u>, The Contracting Agency is accountable for ensuring compliance with 11.1.2 NMAC of its agents, contractors and sub-contractors.

Per 11.1.2.9 B(3) NMAC, the Contracting Agency or its agent shall provide the Notice of Award and Sub-Contractor lists to the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions (NMDWS), Labor and Industrial Bureau promptly after award of the project.

Per 11.1.2.9 C(1) NMAC, the Contracting Agency is required to obtain the Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and the Affidavit of Wages Paid from the general contractor and all sub-contractors. Payments are not to be made until the intent form is filed.

Per 11.1.2.9 B(6) the Contracting Agency is required to obtain certified payroll records from the general contractor for all sub-contractors on a bi-weekly basis. The Contracting Agency must present the documents to the NMDWS, Labor and Industrial Bureau upon request by the Director or designee.

NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS PUBLIC WORKS

Email questions to Public.Works@state.nm.us

Contracting Agency/Owner	County	Decision Date	Decision No.
City of Santa Fe Water Division	Santa Fe	08/28/15	SF-15-1304 A
		Expires for Bids	
Type of Construction: A		12/26/15	

Description of Work: The work consists of, but is not limited to complete in place installation of approximately 410-feet of 4-inch water main, 1180- feet of 6-inch water main, 2130-feet of 8-inch water main including water valves, valve boxes, fire hydrant removals with all appurtenances and road restoration, in accordance with the drawings, specifications, and other contract documents.

REMINDER to those preparing BID documents: If bids are not opened by the above "Expires for Bids" date, a **NEW** wage decision will be required. If bids are **NOT** submitted before new wage rates go into effect, a **NEW** wage decision **WILL** be required. Call Public Works at (505) 841-4400 to check status of new wage rates.

NOTICES

<u>ALL</u> contractors **MUST** have an active registration with the Labor Enforcement Fund before bidding on any public works project. Bids from contractors who are not registered will be considered **INVALID**.

Sub-contractors and 2nd/3rd Tier Contractors **MUST** also submit Statements to their General/Prime before they start work. The General/Prime is responsible for informing the Contracting Agency or its agent whenever there is a change to the subcontractors on the project. Any changes or additions of subcontractors shall also be promptly mailed to the director by the contracting agency or its agent; i.e., architect or engineer.

The Contracting Agency or its agent **MUST** fill out and submit the Notification of Award and Subcontractor list to Public Works and forward the remainder of this wage decision package to the General/Prime Contractor that is awarded the project contract. That contractor is responsible for making certain that all subcontractors have copies of the wage decision and other needed forms.

The General/Prime Contractor **MUST** post the wage rate table at the job site outside the Superintendent's trailer/office in an easily accessible place.

Workers **MUST** be classified & paid according to the work they perform, regardless of qualifications.

8/23/13

New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions Public Works

121 Tijeras Ave. NE, Suite 3000, Albuquerque, NM 87102 Phone: (505)-841-4400 fax to: (505) 841-4424 or Email to: public.works@state.nm.us

Wage Decision # SF-15-1304 A

NOTIFICATION OF AWARD (NOA)

THIS WAGE DECISION # EXPIRES FOR BIDS ON

12/26/15

Description and Location of Work: Bishop's Lodge Road Water Main Replacement

Complete in place installation of approximately 410-feet of 4-inch water main, 1180- feet of 6-inch water main, 2130-feet of 8-inch water main including water valves, valve boxes, fire hydrant removals with all appurtenances and road restoration.

City of Santa Fe

County of Santa Fe

802-834 Bishop's Lodge Road

X REMINDER for Agency Conducting BID Process:

After the Contracting Agency awards this project the Wage Rate Poster, Sub-List and the Project Requirement Document, excluding this NOA must be delivered to the <u>GENERAL/PRIME CONTRACTOR</u>. The Contracting Agency or its agent must complete this form and submit with the sub-list listing all of the subcontractors including all tiers of subcontractors and fax oremail it to the address above. <u>If the project is canceled</u>, this form must be completed by the Contracting agency conducting the bid process and the wording "Cancelled" written on the form and send to the Labor Relations Division. Failure to submit the NOA in a timely manner is a violation of paragraph 11.1.2.9.B (3) of the Public Works Minimum Wage Act Policy Manual.

General/Prime Contractor Company Name:			License#:		
Address:	City:		State:	Zip:	
Telephone:		Fax:			
Project Contact's name:			E-Mail:		
Approximate Date Work to Start:					
Estimated Completion Date:					
Estimated Cost of Project:					
Bid Opening Date:					

Note: The General/Prime Contractor MUST mail/fax in their Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages to the Contracting Agency or its agent before beginning work on the project. Each Subcontractor (and all tiers of subcontractors) MUST also mail/fax their Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages to the General/Prime Contractor 3 days after award of project. After work on the project is completed **and before, final payment,** is made to subcontractors and all tiers of subcontractors, the contractor and subcontractors must mail/fax their Affidavit of Wages paid to the Contracting Agency for final payment.

Signature for Contracting Agency (or agent)

Printed Name		
Email address for Contracting Agency (not agent)	Required	Field
Date		

8/29/13

. . .

SUBCONTRACTOR LIST <u>**DO NOT</u>** list suppliers or professional services (such as surveyors) <u>**INCLUDE</u>** individual subcontractor dollar amount for project Email to: public.works@state.nm.us or fax to: (505) 841-4424</u></u>

Please include 2nd & 3rd Tier subcontractors. Make extra copies of form if necessary. *Wage Decision.* # SF-15-1304 A

General Contractor:

Company Name:				
Address:	City:	St	tate:Zip:	
E-Mail Address:	License No.:			
Phone No.:	License No.: Fax No.:	Sub	2 nd TIER	3 rd TIER
			(To Whom)	(To Whom)
Work to be performed:	Start Date:		Am	ount (\$):
Commony Momo				
Addrass:	City:	S	ata: 7in:	
	City License No.:		ate2tp	
Dhama Ma	Fax No.:Fax No.:	C., h	and TIPP	סמידידס
Phone No.:	Fax No.:	3u0		(To Whom)
Work to be performed:	Start Date:			iount (\$):
Company Name:	<u></u>		. 7:	
	City:		ate:Zip:	
E-Mail Address:	License No.:_			
Phone No.:	Fax No.:	Sub	2 TIER	3- TIER
	C: D .			(To Whom)
Work to be performed:	Start Date:		Ar	nount (\$):
Company Name:				
Address:	City:	St	tate: Zip:	
E-Mail Address:	License No 1			
Phone No.:	Fax No.:	Sub	2 nd TIER	3 rd TIER
			(To Whom)	(To Whom)
Work to be performed:	Start Date:		Am	iount (\$):
Company Name:				
Address:	City:	St	ate: Zip:	
E-Mail Address:	License No.:			
Phone No.:	Fax No.:	Sub	2 nd TIER	3 rd TIER
				(To Whom)
Work to be performed:	Start Date:		Amount	t (\$):
Company Name:				
	City:		tate:Zip:	
E-Mail Address:	License No.:			
Phone No.:	_Fax No.:	Sub	2 ^{ne} TIER	3 rd TIER
			(To Whom)	
Work to be performed:	Start Date:		Amoun	t (\$):

Bishop's Lodge Road Water Main Replacement: Wage Decision #SF-15-1304 A

Complete in place installation of approximately 410-feet of 4-inch water main, 1180- feet of 6-inch water main, 2130-feet of 8-inch water main including water valves, valve boxes, fire hydrant removals with all appurtenances and road restoration.

TYPE "A" - STREET, HIGHWAY, UTILITY & LIGHT ENGINEERING

Effective January 1, 2015				
Trade Classification	Base Rate	Fringe Rate		
Bricklayer/Blocklayer/Stonemason	17.74	0.26		
Carpenter/Lather	15.99	0.44		
Cement Mason	15.52	0.26		
Ironworker	21.77	6.03		
Painter (Brush/Roller/Spray)	17.56	0.44		
Electricians (outside)				
Groundman	26.79	11.03		
Equipment Operator	29.61	11.03		
Lineman/Wireman or Tech	30.20	11.03		
Cable Splicer	31.38	11.03		
Plumber/Pipefitter	28.30	4.07		
Laborers				
Group I	13.73	0.35		
Group II	14.03	0.35		
Group III	14.43	0.35		
Operators				
Group I	15.74	0.26		
Group II	15.94	0.26		
Group III	16.52	0.26		
Group IV	16.54	0.26		
Group V	16.53	0.26		
Group VI	16.69	0.26		
Group VII	16.74	0.26		
Group VIII	16.89	0.26		
Group IX	17.39	0.26		
Group X	18.19	0.26		
Truck Drivers				
Group I	13.32	0.26		
Group II	13.52	0.26		
Group III	13.72	0.26		
Group IV	13.92	0.26		

Effective January 1, 2015

NOTE: SUBSISTENCE AND INCENTIVE PAY DO NOT APPLY TO TYPE "A" CONSTRUCTION.

Type A construction: Laborers, Operators, and Truck Drivers

Laborer classification groups and wage spreads for type "A" construction:

(1) Group I (unskilled): -\$0.30: building and common laborer; carpenter tender chainman; rodman; stakedriver; concrete buggy operator (hand); concrete workers; flagman; soil sample tester;

(2) Group II (semiskilled): (base): wagon, air tract, drill and diamond drillers' tender (outside); air and power tool man (not a carpenter's tool); asphalt heaterman; asphalt jointman; asphalt raker; batching plant scaleman; tenderers (to cement mason and plasterer); chain sawman; concrete power buggyman; concrete touch-up man; concrete sawman - coring mach.; curbing machine, asphalt or cement; cutting torchman; metal form setterroad; grade setter; hod carrier; mortar mixer and mason tender; powderman or blaster helper; sandblaster; scaler; vibratorman (hand type); vibratory compactor (hand type); window washer; nurseryman-gardener; wagon, air tract, drill and diamond driller (outside); roadway hardware worker;

(3) Group III (miscellaneous): +\$0.40: gunite pumpereteman and nozzleman; multi-plate setter; manhole builder; pipielayer; powdermanblaster-makeup; landscaper; traffic control technician; laboratory technician.

Equipment operator classification groups and wage spreads for type "A" construction:

(1) Group I: -\$0.80: concr. paving curing machine;

(2) Group II: -\$0.60: belt type conveyors (material and concrete); broom (self prop.); fork lift; grease truck oper.; head oiler; hydro lift; tractor (under 50 drawbar HP with or without attach.); indus. loco. brakeman; front end loader (2CY or less): fireman; oiler; screedman; roller (pull type); mulching machine, roller (self propelled);

(3) Group III: -\$0.02: concr. paving form grader; concr. paving gang vibrator; concr. paving joint or saw mach.; concr. paving sub grader; tractor with backhoe attachment; subgrade or base finisher; power plant (elec. gen. or welding mach.);

(4) Group IV: (base): bulldozer (including self-propelled roller with dozer attachment); batch or continuous mix plant (concr., soil cement, or asph.); roller (steel wheel); front end loader (2 through 10CY); scraper oper., motor grader;

(5) Group V: +\$0.00: asph. distr.; asph. paving or laydown mach.; asph. retort heater; mixer, heavy duty, asph. or soil cement; trenching mach.; clam type shaftmucker; backhoe, clamshell, dragline, gradall, shovel (under 3/4 CY); elevating grader or belt loader; cranes (crawler or mobile) under 20 ton; air compressor (300 CFM and over); crushing screening and washing plants; drlg. mach. (cable core or rotary); mixer, concr. (1 CY and

less); pump (6 in. intake or over); winch truck; hoist (1 drum); indus. loco. motorman; lumber stacker; tractor (50 drawbar HP or over);

(6) Group VI: +\$0.15: concr. paver mixer; hoist (2 drums and over); side boom; traveling crane; piledriver; backhoe, clamshell, dragline, gradall, shovel (3/4 CY to 3 CY); cranes (crawler or mobile) 20 ton to 40 ton; front end loader (over 10 CY); mixer., concr. (over 1 CY); mechanic and/or welder;

(7) Group VII: +\$0.20: concr. slip-form paving mach.; concr. paving finishing mach.; concr. paving longitudinal float; gunite mach.; refrig.; jumbo form or drlg.; stage; slusher; concr. paving spreader; pumpcrete mach.; grout pump oper.;

(8) Group VIII: +\$0.35: mine hoist; bulldozer (multiple units); scraper (multiple units); mucking mach.; backhoe, clamshell, dragline, gradall, shovel (over 3 CY); cranes (crawler or mobile) over 40 tons;

(9) Group IX: +\$0.85: belt loader (CMI type) oper.; pipemobile oper. assistant; derrick, cableway;

(10) Group X: +\$1.65: pipemobile operator; mole operator.

Truck driver classification groups and wage spreads for type "A" construction:

 Group I: -\$0.20: pick-up truck 3/4 ton or under; warehouseman; dump truck, under 8 cubic yards; flatbed, 1 1/2 ton or under;

(2) Group II: (BASE): dump truck, 8 to 16 cubic yards; tank truck, under 6,000 gallons; flatbed, over 1 1/2 ton;

(3) Group III: +\$0.20: spreader box (self-propelled); distributor (asphalt) transit mix; lowboy, light equipment; off-highway hauler; tank truck, over 6,000 gallons; dump truck, over 16 cubic yards; trailer semi-trailer dump;

(4) Group IV: +\$0.40: diesel-powered transport; lowboy, heavy equipment.

87



CELINA BUSSEY SECRETARY

SUSANA MARTINEZ GOVERNOR

JOHN SANCHEZ LT. GOVERNOR STATE OF NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS 121 Tijeras Ave NE Suite 3000 Albuquerque, NM 87102 Telephone (505) 841-4405 Fax (505) 841-4424

PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT REQUIREMENTS

As a participant in a Public Works project valued at more than \$60,000 in the State of New Mexico, the following list addresses many of the responsibilities that are assigned by statute to each project stakeholder.

Contracting Agency

- Ensure that all contractors/prime contractors wishing to bid on a Public Works project when the project is \$60,000 or more are actively registered with the Labor Relations Division, Labor Enforcement Fund (LEF) prior to bidding.
- Provide completed Notice of Award (NOA) and Sub-Contractor list to Labor Relations Division promptly after the project is awarded.
- Provide updates to the Sub-Contractor list to the Labor Relations Division

General Contractor

- Provide to the Contracting Agency within 3 (Three) days of award a complete subcontractor list and Statements of Intent (SOI) to pay Prevailing Wages for each contractor.
- Ensure that all sub-contractors wishing to bid on a Public Works project when their portion is over \$60,000 are actively registered with the Labor Relations Division prior to bidding.
- Submit bi-weekly certified payrolls to the owner/contracting agency.
- Make certain NM Apprenticeship and Training Fund payments are to be paid either to an approved Apprenticeship program or to the Labor Relations Division.
- Confirm the Wage Rate poster, provided by the Labor Relations Division, is displayed at the job site in an easily accessible place.
- Make sure, when a project has been completed, the Affidavits of Wages Paid (AWP) is sent to the Contracting Agency.

Sub-Contractor

- Ensure that all sub-contractors wishing to bid on a Public Works project when their portion is over \$60,000 are actively registered with the Labor Relations Division prior to bidding.
- Submit bi-weekly certified payrolls to the General Contractor(s).
- Make certain NM Apprenticeship and Training Fund payments are to be paid either to an approved Apprenticeship program or to the Labor Relations Division.

Additional Information

Reference material and forms for these requirements are available through the following New Mexico Workforce Solutions Web Link. <u>www.dws.state.nm.us/new/Labor_Relations/publicworks.html</u>.

Additional Information

Additional information, requirements, and documents on these topics can be found through the Public Works web pages.

- Labor Enforcement Fund (LEF)
- Weekly Certified Payroll
- Public Works Apprenticeship and Training Fund (PWAT)
- Forms: Statement of Intent (SOI), Affidavit of Wages Paid (AWP)
- Prevailing Wage Rates (Base Rates, Fringe, and Apprenticeship Contributions)

CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact us for any questions relating to Public Works Projects.

Kim Kew <u>Kim.Kew@state.nm.us</u> or 505-841-4405 Otis Caddy <u>LynnO.Caddy@state.nm.us</u> 505-841-4406 Stacey Lowrey <u>Stacey.Lowrey@state.nm.us</u> 505-841-4412 Violet Miera <u>Violet.Miera2@state.nm.us</u> 505-841-4418

STATEMENT OF INTENT TO PAY PREVAILING WAGES To Be Completed Before Construction Starts All FIELDS ARE REQUIRED

FORM MUST BE SENT TO THE CONTRACTING AGENCY WITHIN 3 DAY OF THE AWARD

General Contractor Information					
Company Name:					
Address:					
City :	State:	Zip:			
Phone:	Fax: E-Mail:				
Estimated Start Date:		State Wage Decision Num	Decision Number:		
Project Title:		Project Physical Address:			
Total Contract Amount:		Estimated Completion Date	2:		
Print Name: General Contractor Signature:					
			Start date on this project:		
Sub Contractor Information	Sub Contra	act Amount:			
Company Name:					
Address:					
City:	State:	Zip:			
Phone:	Fax:	E-Mail:			
		C.L. Contractor Construct			
Print Name:		Sub Contractor Signature:			
2 nd , 3 rd , etc. Tier Sub-Contractor			Start date on this project:		
	Contract	t Amount:			
Company Name:					
Address:					
City:	State:	Zip:			
Phone:	Fax:	E-Mail:			
Print Name:		Tier Signature:			

I hereby certify that the above information is correct and that all workers I employ on this public works project will be paid no less than the Prevailing Wage Rate(s) as determined by the Department of Workforce Solutions, Labor Relations Division for this project as identified by the State Wage Decision Number. I understand that contractors who violate Prevailing Wage Laws (i.e., incorrect job classification, improper payment of prevailing wages, and/or overtime, etc.), are subject to debarment procedures and shall be required to pay any back wages due to workers. (Ref. Labor Relations Division, Public Works Minimum Wage Act Policy Manual (11.1.2 NMAC) & Public Works Minimum Wage Act (13-4-11 through 13-4-18, NMSA 1978).

Contractor's Signature

Date

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING STATEMENT OF INTENT TO PAY PREVAILING WAGES

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

- 1. Enter general contractor information and provide signature.
- 2. Enter State Wage Decision Number as listed in bid documents. (Example: BE-13-0123 B)
- 3. Enter project title listed in bid documents.
- 4. Enter project physical address exact location of project (job site).
- 5. Enter estimated start & completion dates of project.
- 6. Enter general contractor's contract amount.
- 7. All Statements must be sent to the Contracting Agency.

SUB CONTRACTOR

- 1. Enter general contractor information, but general contractor signature is not needed.
- 2. Enter sub contractor information as indicated and provide signature.
- 3. Enter sub contractor contract amount.

NOTE: A separate signed form is needed for each contractor.

2ND TIER SUB CONTRACTOR

- 1. Enter general contractor information, but general contractor signature is not needed.
- 2. Enter sub contractor information; subcontractor signature not needed.
- 3. Enter 2nd tier sub information and provide signature.
- 4. Enter 2nd tier contractors contract amount.

3RD TIER AND HIGHER CONTRACTOR

1. Attach a copy of this completed form & list the 3rd tier contractor information under the 2nd tier

City of Santa Fe Minimum Wage Ordinance 2003-8

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO



LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE

AMENDED*: 11/28/07 (Ord. 2007-43)

EFFECTIVE DATE OF AMENDMENT: 1/1/08

^{*} Ord. No. 2007-43 amended Section 28-1.2 and Section 28-1.5 of the Santa Fe City Code, the remainder of Article 28-1 remained the same

Page 1 of 5

28-1 LIVING WAGE.

28-1.1 Short Title.

This section may be cited as the "Living Wage Ordinance". (Ord. #2002-13, §1)

28-1.2 Legislative Findings.

The governing body of the city has determined that:

A. The public welfare, health, safety and prosperity of Santa Fe require wages and benefits sufficient to ensure a decent and healthy life for workers and their families;

B. Many Santa Fe workers earn wages insufficient to support themselves and their families;

C. Many Santa Fe workers cannot participate in civic life or pursue educational, cultural, and recreational opportunities because they must work such long hours to meet their households' most basic needs;

D. Minimum wage laws promote the general welfare, health, safety and prosperity of Santa Fe by ensuring that workers can better support and care for their families through their own efforts and without financial governmental assistance;

E. The average earnings per job in Santa Fe County is twenty-three percent (23%) below the national average and the cost of living is eighteen percent (18%) higher than the national average;

F. Housing costs in Santa Fe are much higher than in most other parts of New Mexico, and low income workers must therefore spend a disproportionate percentage of their income sheltering themselves and their families;

G. Livable wages also benefit employers and the economy as a whole by improving employee performance, reducing employee turnover, lowering absenteeism, and thereby improving productivity and the quality of the services provided by employees;

H. When businesses do not pay a livable wage, the community bears the cost in the form of increased demand for taxpayer-funded social services including homeless shelters, soup kitchens and healthcare for the uninsured. Coupled with high real estate values, low wages reduce the ability of low- and moderate-income residents to access affordable housing. As a result, the city has had to invest significant tax dollars to support affordable housing including funding to nonprofit organizations, purchasing land, building infrastructure and waiving fees. In addition, the city has allocated significant tax dollars to operate after school and summer recreation programs and to support nonprofit organizations offering an array of human services and children and youth services, all of which are needed by very low-income residents and their families;

I. It is in the public interest to require certain employers benefiting from city actions and funding, and from the opportunity to do business in the city, to pay employees a minimum wage, a "living wage", adequate to meet the basic needs of living in Santa Fe; J. According to the 2000 Census, approximately twelve and three-tenths percent (12.3%) of the Santa Fe community lives below the poverty level; and

K. According to the New Mexico department of labor, twenty-three and one-half percent (23.5%) of Santa Feans who are employed in the nongovernmental sector earn hourly wages of ten dollars and fifty cents (\$10.50) per hour or less.

L. The governing body has reviewed the impact of previous minimum wage increases, relevant studies and other appropriate data, and finds that the city's minimum wage should be upwardly adjusted each year to keep pace with increases in the cost of living.

M. The governing body has found that limiting coverage of the minimum wage just to businesses with twenty-five (25) or more employees has hindered compliance and has created an uneven playing field among local businesses.

(Ord. #2002-13, §2; Ord. #2003-8, §1; Ord. #2007-43, §1)

28-1.3 Authority of the City of Santa Fe.

This Living Wage Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the general welfare and police powers conferred upon the city of Santa Fe by §3-17-1 et seq. and §3-18-1 et seq. NMSA 1978, pursuant to the powers conferred upon the city of Santa Fe by New Mexico Constitution, Article X §§6(D) and 6 (E) and the Municipal Charter Act §3-15-1 et seq. NMSA 1978, which have been exercised by the city's adoption of its "Santa Fe Municipal Charter". (Ord. #2002-13, §3; Ord. #2003-8, §2)

28-1.4 Purpose.

The purposes of this section are:

A. To have the city of Santa Fe set an example for the public and private sectors by paying its employees a minimum wage adequate to meet the basic needs of living in Santa Fe.

B. To raise the income of low-income employees of employers who contract with the city, receive grants, subsidies or other benefits from the city or benefit from the opportunity to do business in Santa Fe. (Ord. #2002-13, §4; Ord. #2003-8, §3)

28-1.5 Minimum Wage Payment Requirements.

A. The following shall pay the minimum wage:

(1) The city of Santa Fe to all full-time permanent workers employed by the city. However, the provisions of this section are expressly limited by and subject to future union negotiations in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act and subsequent appropriations by the governing body in compliance with the Bateman Act;

(2) Contractors for the city, that have a contract requiring the performance of a service including construction services but excluding purchases of goods, shall pay the minimum wage to their workers and subcontractors performing work under the contract if the total contract amount with the city is, or by way of amendment becomes, equal to or greater than thirty thousand dollars (\$30,000.); and

(3) Businesses receiving assistance relating to economic development in the form of grants, subsidies, loan guarantees or industrial revenue bonds in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000.) to those employed by such entity for the duration of the city grant or subsidy; and

Businesses required to have a business license or business registration from the (4) city of Santa Fe and nonprofit organizations shall pay the minimum wage to their workers for all hours worked within the city of Santa Fe that month. For purposes of this paragraph, worker shall not include any person who is related by blood or by marriage to any person who may have or possess any ownership interest in the business that employs them. For purposes of identifying persons entitled to be paid the minimum wage, all individuals employed by or providing work to the business for compensation, whether on a part-time, full-time or temporary basis, during a given month shall be counted as a worker. This definition shall include contingent or contracted workers, and persons made available to work through the services of a temporary service, staffing or employment agency or similar entity. However, interns working for a business for academic credit in connection with a course of study at an accredited school, college or university or persons working for an accredited school, college or university while also attending that school, college or university, or persons working for a business in connection with a court-ordered community service program such as teen court or workers who are in an apprenticeship program in a 501C(3) organization (such as the Santa Fe Opera) shall not be counted as a worker for such purposes.

B. Beginning January 1, 2004, the minimum wage shall be an hourly rate of eight dollars and fifty cents (\$8.50). In computing the wage paid for purposes of determining compliance with the minimum wage, the value of health benefits and childcare shall be considered as an element of wages. On January 1, 2006, the minimum wage shall be increased to an hourly rate of nine dollars and fifty cents (\$9.50). Beginning January 1, 2009, and each year therafter, the minimum wage shall be adjusted upward by an amount corresponding to the previous year's increase, if any, in the consumer price index for the western region for urban wage earners and clerical workers.

C. For workers who customarily receive more than one hundred dollars (\$100.) per month in tips or commissions, any tips or commissions received and retained by a worker shall be counted as wages and credited towards satisfaction of the minimum wage provided that, for tipped workers, all tips received by such workers are retained by the workers, except that the pooling of tips among workers shall be permitted.

D. Nonprofit organizations whose primary source of funds is from Medicaid waivers are exempt.

E. Staff shall contract for a study or studies to review the impact of changes made to the Living Wage Ordinance approved as Ordinance No. 2007-43 on businesses of less than ten employees and on the student drop-out rate. The study shall be presented to the governing body no later than July 1, 2009.

(Ord. No. 2002-13, §5; Ord. #2003-8, §4; Ord. #2005-40; Ord. #2007-43, §2)

Page 4 of 5

28-1.6 Prohibitions Against Retaliation and Circumvention.

A. It shall be unlawful for any employer or employer's agent or representative to take any action against an individual in retaliation for the exercise of or communication of information regarding rights under this section. This section shall also apply to any individual that mistakenly, but in good faith, alleges noncompliance with this section.

B. Taking adverse action against an individual within sixty (60) days of the individual's assertion of or communication of information regarding rights shall raise a rebuttable presumption of having done so in retaliation for the assertion of rights.

C. It shall be unlawful for any business or employer to intentionally circumvent the requirements of this section by contracting portions of its operation or leasing portions of its property. (Ord. #2002-13, §6; Ord. #2003-8, §5)

28-1.7 Reserved.

Editors Note: Former subsection 28-1.7, Compliance Through Collective Bargaining Process, previously codified herein and containing portions of Ordinance No. 2002-13, was repealed in its entirety by Ordinance No. 2004-38.

28-1.8 Enforcement; Remedies.

A. Administrative Enforcement. The city manager, or his/her designee, is authorized, as appropriate and as resources permit, to enforce this section. The city manager is authorized to investigate possible violations of this section. Where the city manager, after a proceeding that affords a suspected violator due process, concludes that a violation has occurred, the city manager may issue orders to the employer appropriate to effectuate the complaining person's rights, including but not limited to back pay and reinstatement. The city manager also has the power to order termination of any and all economic benefit derived by any offending party from the city and has the power to revoke the employer's business license or registration.

B. Criminal Penalty. A person violating this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, for each offense may be subject to fines and imprisonment as set forth in Section 1-3 SFCC 1987. A person violating any of the requirements of this section shall be guilty of a separate offense for each day or portion thereof and for each worker or person as to which any such violation has occurred.

C. Other Remedies. The city, any individual aggrieved by a violation of this section, or any entity the members of which have been aggrieved by a violation of this section, may bring a civil action in a court of competent jurisdiction to restrain, correct, abate or remedy any violation of this section and, upon prevailing, shall be entitled to such legal or equitable relief as may be appropriate to remedy the violation including, without limitation, reinstatement, the payment of any wages due and an additional amount as liquidated damages equal to twice the amount of any wages due, injunctive relief, and reasonable attorney's fees and costs.

D. Nonexclusive Remedies and Penalties. The remedies provided in this section are not exclusive, and nothing in this section shall preclude any person from seeking any other remedies, penalties, or relief provided by law.

(Ord. #2002-13, §8; Ord. #2003-8, §6)

28-1.9 Effect.

Nothing in this Living Wage Ordinance shall be deemed to nor shall be applied in such a manner so as to have a constitutionally prohibited effect as an ex post facto law or impairment of an existing contract within the meaning of New Mexico Constitution, Article II, §19. (Ord. #2002-13, §9)

28-1.10 Severability.

The requirements and provisions of this section and their parts, subparts and clauses are severable. In the event that any requirement, provision, part, subpart or clause of this section, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the intent of the governing body that the remainder of the section be enforced to the maximum extent possible consistent with the governing body's purpose of ensuring a living wage for persons covered by the section. (Ord. #2002-13, §10; Ord. #2003-8, §7)

28-1.11 Notice; Posting; and Publication.

Any business subject to the provisions of this section shall as a condition to obtaining and holding a city of Santa Fe business license or registration, post and display in a prominent location next to its business license or registration on the business premises a notice, in English and Spanish, that the business is in compliance with the provisions of this section and in particular post the text of subsections 28-1.5, 28-1.6 and 28-1.8 SFCC 1987. Failure to comply with this subsection shall be construed a violation of this section and, in addition, shall be considered grounds for suspension, revocation, or termination of the business license or registration. (Ord. #2003-8, §8)

28-1.12 Living Wage Review.

The city shall conduct a review of this section on or before July 1, 2005. In conducting said review the governing body may, at its discretion and pursuant to a duly-adopted resolution, appoint an ad hoc committee to advise and assist in making recommendations regarding this section and to investigate the economic and social effects of this section on Santa Fe. The city will contract with an independent third party to develop an evaluation that will generate objective measures on the effect of the Living Wage Ordinance on the health, security, and livelihood of Santa Feans by March 31, 2003. Data necessary for such an evaluation on Santa Fe city businesses will be compiled and presented to the governing body for their review on or before July 1, 2003. In compiling the data, consideration should be given to potential impacts on youth employment and possible recommendations that might prevent unforeseen consequences hurting children in the community. (Ord. #2003-8, §9)

EXHIBIT II – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

BISHOP'S LODGE RD., BROWNELL-HOWLAND RD., LUGAR DE MONTE VISTA WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT Table of Contents

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

01010	Summary of Work
01025	Measurement and Payment
01300	Submittals
01500	Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls

SECTION 01010 SUMMARY OF WORK

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Description of Project
- B. Location of work to be performed.

1.02 DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

- A. Purpose of Project & General Scope
 - a. The purpose of this project is to replace and upgrade water main lines on: Bishop's Lodge Road between Stagecoach Dr. and Hillcrest Dr., Brownell-Howland and Terral Rd., and Lugar de Monte Vista west of Galisteo St..
 - b. The work consists of, but is not limited to complete in place installation of approximately 410-feet of 4-inch water main, 1180- feet of 6-inch water main, 2130-feet of 8-inch water main including water valves, valve boxes, fire hydrant removals with all appurtenances and road restoration, in accordance with the drawings, specifications, and other contract documents. All work will be in accordance with the drawings, specifications, and other contract documents. The Water Division Construction Standards and Specifications can be found at: <<u>http://www.santafenm.gov/media/files/Public_Utilities_WATER/2014_Construction_Standa</u> rds_and_Specifications.pdf>
 - c. All work is under a variety of surfaces including soil, asphalt.
- B) Existing System

a. The existing system has 6-inch and 8-inch P.V.C. on Bishop's Lodge Road and Stagecoach Drive, 4-inch Steel near Brownell-Howland and Terral Roads, and 2-inch Galvanized Steel water mains on Lugar de Monte Vista Street.

C) Qualifications

- a. The Contractor shall meet the requirements for approval as City of Santa Fe Water Division Utility Contractor.
- b. Contractors will need to comply with the design requirements, and remain in accordance with applicable codes, laws and standards.
- c. Contactor shall submit traffic control plans and schedule work to maintain access for affected residents and businesses.
- d. The City Water Division will provide inspection on the project. The City fully anticipates the Contractor to immediately start work on this project with the notice to proceed and expediently complete installation work within an approved schedule.
- e. Railroad Liability Insurance and RR Flagging shall be in place prior to any construction activities within the rail right of way. ALL personnel working within railroad right of way shall have taken an approved railroad safety class and have received their certificate.
- D) Scope of Work Tasks
 - a. Draft Work Plan/Schedule
 - i. The Contractor shall develop a draft work plan and schedule.
 - ii. The Draft Work Plan should focus on the following areas:
 - 1. Schedule
 - 2. Work Hours
 - 3. Communications with residents and businesses
 - b. Final Work Plan and Project Kick-Off
 - i. The Consultant shall prepare a detailed Final Work Plan to be utilized throughout project execution. The Work Plan will be developed based on the Contract Scope of Work. The Final Work Plan shall be prepared in collaboration with Water Division Staff.
 - ii. Kick-off Meeting

- 1. The Contractor shall prepare for and lead a project kickoff meeting.
- 2. The meeting shall be held at the Water Division offices and include the key Contractor staff, any sub-Contractors and appropriate Water Division staff and key stakeholders.
- 3. The kickoff meeting shall introduce the project team, confirm the project objectives and discuss key issues and concerns.
- 4. At the meeting, the Contractor will also present the scope of work, key deliverables, budget, schedule and communications plan and other project plans as described in the draft Final Work Plan.
- 5. The Contractor will provide the suggested meeting agenda and draft Final Work Plan to the Water Division at least one week prior to the Kickoff Meeting.

E) Schedule

- a. The entire pipeline installation project must be completed within onehundred and five (105) days from the date the notice to proceed is issued.
- b. Contractor to plan to conduct all of the tasks that will occur.
- c. City Water Division Inspector will be available to provide guidance and will approve field changes as needed to accomplish the water line installation.

1.03 LOCATION OF WORK

A) The water main locations are located on Bishop's Lodge Road between Stagecoach Dr. and Hillcrest Dr., Brownell-Howland and Terral Rd., and Lugar de Monte Vista west of Galisteo St..

SECTION 01025 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. General requirements for measurement and payment of bid items.
- B. Description of bid items.

1.02 GENERAL

A. The total base bid price and alternate bid price shall cover all work required by the contract documents for construction of a completely functional and operational facility. All costs, including mobilization and demobilization, bonds, licenses, furnishing all materials, equipment, supplies, and appurtenances; demolition and disposal of debris in accordance with all

applicable laws and regulation; providing all construction plans, equipment, and tools; and performing all necessary labor and supervision to fully complete the work in accordance with these contract documents, shall be included in the unit and lump sum prices bid. All work not specifically set forth as a pay item in the bid proposal shall be considered a subsidiary obligation of Contractor and as such, all costs in connection therewith shall be included in the prices bid.

1.03 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

- A. All measurements and payments will be based on completed work performed in strict accordance with the specifications and in accordance with contract-unit prices and schedule of values. Incidental work and items not listed in the contract-unit price schedule will not be paid for separately, but will be included in the payment for the listed item or items to which such incidental work applies. Measurement and payment for lump sum items shall be full compensation for all labor, equipment, materials, testing, and incidentals necessary to perform the work in accordance with these contract documents, and shall include all incidentals not provided under other items.
- B. Item numbers listed below correspond directly to bid item numbers in the bid form:

Bid Item No. 10, 20, 30 – Water main with Restraints and Fittings Payment for water main shall be made at the unit price per linear foot of each diameter and type of pipe, as measured along the pipe center line from center of fitting to center of fitting. Work shall include construction staking, excavating trench up to six feet in depth, installing pipe at depth shown on plans, fittings, restraints, mechanical joints, harnesses, blocking, jointing and coupling materials, installing polyethylene wrap (as per ANSI/AWWA C105/A21.5 standard) on all buried ductile iron pipe, fittings and valves (including fittings and valves installed on PVC pipe), installing locating wire and marker tape, backfilling and compacting, testing soil density, testing hydrostatic pressure, flushing, disinfecting, testing potability and as-built record of finish pipeline grade (Contractor to furnish record drawings to Owner), and any other incidental items required to complete the Work including all work and materials required for retiring the existing water mains including but not limited to retiring pipe, valve and valve box removals, and cutting and capping. Note that the linear feet is only an estimate, the actual number may be higher or lower and will be paid by the actual lengths installed.

Bid Item No. 40 – Tapping sleeve

Payment for tapping sleeve with pressurized (hot tap) connection shall be made at the unit price per each sleeve complete in place. Work shall include

excavating to the main, installing tapping sleeve complete in place, all connecting materials, concrete blocking, air testing tapping sleeve, tapping through pressurized water main, backfilling and compacting and any incidental items required to complete the Work. Payment for tapping valve shall be made under Valve and Box.

Bid Item No. 50 – Non-Pressure Connection to 4"-10" Line

Payment for non-pressure connection to the 4"-10" line shall be made at the lump sum price. Work shall include excavating, dewatering, backfill, compaction with density testing; disinfection and testing, restraints, and all incidental work required to complete the non-pressurized connection including, but not limited to capping existing lines as needed. Installation of pipe shall be paid for separately under Bid Items 10-30.

Bid Item No. 60, 70 – Valve and Box

Payment for valve and box shall be made at the unit price per each size and type of valve and box installed. Work shall include excavating trench, installing valve box up to 6 feet in depth, installing concrete collar, installing valve, backfilling and compacting and any incidental items required to complete the Work.

Bid Item No. 80 – Imported backfill (as Owner approved)

Payment for imported backfill shall be made at the unit price per cubic yard, as measured in place. Work shall include furnishing imported backfill, compacting, testing soil density and removing and disposing of unsuitable material. No payment will be made for imported backfill that does not meet the requirements of these specifications. No payment will be made for imported material outside the specified trench width limits. Note that 320 Cubic Yards is an estimate, the actual number may be higher or lower.

Bid Item No. 90 - Fire Hydrant Removal

Payment for fire hydrant removal shall be made at the unit price per each fire hydrant removed. Work shall include excavating trench, removing fire hydrant, backfilling and compacting, and any incidental items required to complete the Work.

Bid Item No. 100 – 3- Fire Hydrant Assembly

Payment for fire hydrants shall be made at the unit price per each fire hydrant installed. Work shall include excavating trench, installing fire hydrant, installing gravel drain, installing all jointing materials, backfilling and compacting, painting and numbering and any incidental items required to complete the Work. The fire hydrant leg pipe, hydrant leg restraint, and any main line fittings shall be included for payment under this item. The shut off valve shall be paid for separately under Bid Item No. 90 6-inch Valve and Box.

Bid Item No. 110 – Asphalt pavement removal & disposal

Payment for removal and disposal of City asphalt pavement shall be made at the unit price per square yard for less than 2" and 2" through 6" thicknesses. Payment for removal of City asphalt pavement greater than 6" thickness shall be made at the unit price times the actual thickness in inches divided by 6 inches (e.g. paving 10" thickness paid at the unit price times 1.67). Work shall include cutting pavement as marked, removing and satisfactorily disposing of pavement and any incidental items required to complete the Work.

Bid Item No. 120 - Replace city street pavement

Payment for replacing City street pavement shall be made at the unit price per square yard for the appropriate type of pavement up to 6" in thickness (asphalt, concrete, or temporary cold mix). Payment for replacing City street pavement greater than 6" in thickness shall be made at the unit price times the actual thickness in inches divided by 6" (e.g. paving 10" thickness paid at the unit price X 1.67). Work includes preparing sub-grade, furnishing and installing sub-base and base pavement course(s) with or without a laydown machine, cleaning-up, removing and disposing of any excess materials and any incidental items required to complete the Work.

Bid Item No. 130 - Meter box relocation/replacement

Payment for meter box relocation/replacement shall be made at the unit price per horizontal relocation/replacement and/or vertical adjustment of each meter box per the Standard Details. Work shall include excavating trench, relocating/replacing meter can with lid and cover, relocating angle valve and ells, meter yoke(s) or setter, relocating service line fittings, connecting to existing customer yard line, transferring existing meter, returning all salvageable materials to SDCW yard, adjusting meter box to grade, backfilling and compacting, testing soil density, flushing service, hydrostatic testing, disinfecting service and any incidental items required to complete the Work. Pavement removal and replacement shall be paid for under the appropriate bid items.

Bid Item No. 140 - Service Transfer

Payment for a service transfer shall be made at the unit price per service transferred from an existing main to a new main. This Work is to be done only if the service is copper and in good condition. Since the new main may be located closer or farther away from the existing main, this Work will require either extending or shortening the service line for connecting to the new main. Required Work and material include: excavating trench, installing corporation stop and tapping new pressurized water main, closing the old corporation stop, connecting the existing service to new corporation stop with service line connectors or couplings, backfilling and compacting, flushing service line, testing soil density and hydrostatic testing and any

incidental items required to complete the Work. Pavement removal and replacement shall be paid for under the appropriate bid items. Copper service piping and tapping saddle shall be paid for under the appropriate Service Saddle and Copper Tubing bid items.

Bid Item No. 150, 160 – Service Saddle

Payment for a service saddle shall be made at the unit price per each size of service saddle installed.

Bid Item No. 170, 180 - Service Tubing

Payment for service tubing shall be made at the unit price per linear foot of copper, Type K, tubing installed, as measured horizontally. Work shall include installing copper, Type K, tubing and any incidental items required to complete the work. This item shall be used for service transfers where the existing tubing must be extended or is not in good condition.

Bid Item No. 190 - Traffic Control Invoice Cost plus Mark Up

Payment for traffic control shall be based on required traffic control for specific job as approved by City's Traffic Division (including flagman, signing, barricades, etc.) at the invoice cost for traffic control plan development and implementation plus the percentage markup as bid. Contractor's administrative work shall be incorporated into project material costs

<u>Bid Item No. 200 – Exploratory Excavation (As SDCW Approved)</u> Payment for Exploratory Excavation shall be made at the unit price per cubic yard. Exploratory excavation payment will be made only when preauthorized by SDCW and shall not be paid for normal 'potholing' of utility lines in advance of water line or service line construction.

Bid Item No. 210 – Rock Excavation

Payment for Rock Excavation shall be made at the unit price per cubic yard, as measured within the trench width limits and shall be in addition to the payment for trenching, backfilling and compacting. Work shall include excavating rock within the trench width limits, as defined in APWA-Section 700, removing and disposing of rock. No payment shall be made for rock excavation outside the specified trench width limits.

SECTION 01300 SUBMITTALS

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. General submittal requirements and procedures
- B. Contractor's responsibility
- C. Shop Drawings
- D. Product Data
- E. Samples

1.02 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Conditions of the Contract

1.03 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Requirements in this section are in addition to any specific submittal requirements as set forth in Specification sections and General Provisions of these Contract Documents.
- B. Review, acceptance, or approval of substitutions, schedules, shop drawings, lists of materials, and procedures submitted or required by the Contractor shall not add to the Contract amount, and all additional costs which may result therefrom shall be solely the obligation of the Contractor.
- C. The Owner is not precluded, by virtue of review, acceptance, or approval, from obtaining a credit for Contractor for construction savings resulting from allowed concessions in the work or materials therefore.
- D. It shall not be the responsibility of the Owner to provide engineering other services to protect the Contractor from additional costs accruing from such approvals.
- E. Provide submittals for the items of equipment and materials in accordance with the Bid Items and any other materials to be used on this project.
- F. Submit concurrently all equipment which forms a system or subsystem that must be reviewed simultaneously because of coordination requirements.
- G. Catalogs for submittals should have unrelated pages removed or clearly marked "Not Applicable", and capacity and parameters relating to the item or items specified should be clearly marked.
- H. Submit all forms, data, information, certificates, schedules, etc., as required in each technical specification section.

1.04 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Review all submittal prior to submission.
- B. Determine and verify:
 - 1. Field measurements.
 - 2. Field construction criteria.
 - 3. Catalog numbers and similar identifying data.
 - 4. Conformance with specifications.
 - 5. Conflict with other items of construction past, present, or future.
- C. Coordinate each submittal with requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents.
- D. Notify the Owner in writing, at time of submission, of any deviations in the submittals from requirements of the Contract Documents.
 - E. Begin no fabrications or work which requires submittals until return of submittals with Owner's final review.

1.05 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

- A. Make submittals promptly and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work and at least 3 days before approval is required.
- B. Number of submittal required:
 - 1. Submit the appropriate number of copies of each submittal to provide number required for use by the Contractor plus the number of copies retained by Owner.
 - 2. Owner will retain three (3) copies of the submittal.
- C. Transmittal Procedures:
 - 1. Transmit each submittal on Owner accepted transmittal form.
 - 2. Sequentially number each form; re-submittal to have original number with an alphabetic suffix.
 - 3. Identify project, Contractor, Specification section number, pertinent Drawing sheet and detail number(s), products, units, and assemblies, and the system or equipment identification or tag number as shown.
 - 4. Provide one transmittal form for each individual section. Do not combine sections.
 - 5. Apply Contractor's stamp, signed or initialed certifying that review, verification of products required, field dimensions, adjacent construction work, and coordination of information, is in accordance with requirements of the Contract Documents.

- 6. Transmit submittals in accordance with finalized schedule of submittals.
- 7. Provide space for Owner/Engineer review stamps.
- 8. Revise and resubmit submittals are required; identify all changes made since previous submittal.
- 9. Use Owner approved submittal transmittal form.

1.06 SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, performance charts, and other data prepared by Contractor or any subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor, which illustrates how specific portions of Work shall be fabricated and/or installed. Design drawings shall not be used as Shop Drawings. Indicate all components that are required to assure proper shop fabrication and job installation.
- B. The Contractor agrees that shop drawing submittals processed by the Owner do not become contract Documents and are not Change Orders; that the purpose of the shop drawing review is to establish a reporting procedure and is intended for the Contractor's convenience in organizing his work and to permit the Owner to monitor the Contractor's progress and understanding of the design.

1.07 PRODUCT DATA

- A. Includes catalog cuts.
- B: Preparation:
 - 1. Clearly mark each copy to identify pertinent products or models.
 - 2. Show performance characteristics and capacities.
 - 3. Show dimensions and clearances required.
 - 4. Show wiring or piping diagrams and controls
 - 5. For equipment with electrical schematic given in Drawings, provide statement from manufacturer that equipment operation per schematic is appropriate for equipment.
- C. Installation data for all materials and equipment for which operation and maintenance manuals are not provided:
 - 1. Provide manufacturer's installation instructions and recommendations.
 - 2. Provide referenced standards for installation.
- D. Manufacturer's standard schematic drawings and diagrams:

- 1. Modify drawings and diagrams to delete information which is not applicable to the Work.
- 2. Supplement standard information to provide information specifically applicable to the Work.

1.08 SAMPLES

- A. Office samples shall be sufficient size and quantity to clearly illustrate:
 - 1. Functional characteristics of the project, with integrally related parts and attachment devices.
 - 2. Full range of color, texture, and pattern.
- B. Include identification on each sample, with full project information.
- C. Paint Colors: To be determined by the Owner.

SECTION 01500 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Construction Facilities and Controls
- B. Waste Disposal
- C. Protection of Work Site
- D. Temporary Utilities

1.02 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Conditions of the Contract
- B. Requirements for working in the Railroad Right of Way
 - 1. Railroad Liability Insurance and RR Flagging shall be in place prior to any construction activities within the rail right of way.
 - 2. ALL personnel working within railroad right of way shall have taken an approved railroad safety class and have received their certificate.

1.03 TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES

Provide necessary sanitary disposal facilities for use by employees. Maintain facilities in a clean and sanitary manner.

1.04 PROTECTION OF WORK SITE

- A. The contractor shall be responsible for protection of the work site for the duration of the project.
- B. At completion of the work, is considered incidental to the project and no separate payment will be allowed.

1.05 NOISE CONTROL

- A. All work will adhere to the County of Santa Fe noise ordinance.
- B. All equipment used for the work will incorporate noise control measures to ensure that noise is not exceeding County of Santa Fe noise ordinance.

EXHIBIT III – STANDARD PROJECT DETAILS

01 - Project Sign



EXHIBIT IV – CITY OF SANTA FE MINIMUM WAGE ORDINANCE INFORMATION



PURSUANT TO THE CITY OF SANTA FE LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE, SECTION 28-1 SFCC 1987 **EFFECTIVE MARCH 1, 2015 ALL WORKERS WITHIN THE** CITY OF SANTA FE SHALL BE PAID A LIVING WAGE OF



Santa Fe's Living Wage

- The Santa Fe Living Wage Ordinance establishes minimum hourly wages.
 The March 1, 2015 Living Wage increase corresponds to the increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI).
- All employers required to have a business license or registration from the City of Santa Fe ("City") must pay at least the adjusted 2015 Living Wage to employees for all hours worked within the Santa Fe city limits.

Who is Required to Pay the Living Wage?

- The City to all full-time permanent workers employed by the City;
- Contractors for the City, that have a contract requiring the performance of a service but excluding purchases of goods;
- Businesses receiving assistance relating to economic development in the form of grants, subsidies, loan guarantees or industrial revenue bonds in excess of twentyfive thousand dollars (\$25,000) for the duration of the City grant or subsidy;
- Businesses required to have a business license or registration from the City; and • Nonprofit organizations, except for those whose primary source of funds is from
- Medicaid waivers.
- For workers who customarily receive more than one hundred dollars (\$100) per month in tips or commissions, any tips or commissions received and retained by a worker shall be counted as wages and credited towards satisfaction of the Living Wage provided that, for tipped workers, all tips received by such workers are retained by the workers, except that the pooling of tips among workers shall be permitted.

More Information, including the Living Wage Ordinance, is available at http://www.santafenm.gov (Click on Hot Topics/Living Wage)

INSTALL I-6-6 TAPPING. SLEEVE (FULL CIRCLE STAINLESS STEEL) I-6 TAP G.V. & BOX 2-45° ELLS AESTRAIN (TRANSFER) (TRANSFER) RES*820 RES, 824 CAPIAFTER NEW LINE IS IN SERVICE 1 1 RES^{*}831 SEE ViMi * RES, RES: *822 # 818 1/2 (8.19-02-001) (TRANSFER) (TRANSFER)山 EX 6 P.V.C 3/4 CU CRETIRE V EX. VALVES -RETIRE EX, 6"PVC 1" × 3/4" CU. NEH 526 3/4 "CU] (TRANSFER) RES*802 RES "3/4"C,Ui W.M. RETIRE EX. 6 PVC 3/4"C,U, @ a' la"cu EDGE ASPH 6"pvc ROAD 0' LODGE KEDGE (ASPH.) INSTALL; 2-6"45° ELLS (RESTRAIN) INSTALL: 4-221/2° ELL'S TIE INTO EX G"P.VC LINE (A ESTRA IN) CAP BOTH SIDES) EDGE (ASPH)-BISHOPS SEE V.M. # (G 19-02-004) INSTALL! -I - NEW, 3-WAY F.H. I - GX6 M.J. X F.LG. * 823 OFF STAGECOACH DR · V =-WM TEEN I GMJ, X FLG, G.V. G"DA, PIPE (RESTRAIN) "x 5/8" CU /INSTALL I-NEW 3-WAY FH I-O'MJ X.6'FLG,TEE I-O'FLG X M.J. VALVE (RESTRA IN) WY 3/4 CU. RES. 819 EX, W.M. (TRANSFER) (TRANSFER) FH 746 INSTALL STAGE COACH RD SEE (V.M. *G 19-19-005) NREMOVE SCALE; 1=30 (REMOVE: 270' OF EX 8" PV.C) DRIVI NOTE / INSTALL # 1100 FT: OF POLYWRAP 6 D.I. PIPE ON BISHOPS LDG, RD. FR. STAGE COACH DR. N. TO HILLCREST DR. ALSO -INSTALL - 270 FT OF POLYWPAP 8D.1. PIPE ON STAGE COACH DR . INSTALL'I 270'± OF 8 D.I. WATER MAIN SAME LOCI INSTALLI 1.8 SS. (RESTAIN) EX 8 61. (SEE V.M. *619-19.002) CFH. 760 STAGECO RES # 834 (TRANSFER) RES #832 . 3/4"C,U, (TRANSER) 3/4"CU (TRANSFER RES^{*}831 314" C.U. | 1 . so y . . you can for you RD, LODGE BISHOPS SANGRE DE CRISTO WATER N EDGE RD. FH,1196 SANTA FE DR INSTALL: 2-45°ELLS (RESTAIN) Kafédes 2015 CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS **RECORD MAPPING** (V.M. G.19-02-005) HILLCREST TITLE DATE OH/2/12BY 2 0 BISHOPS LODGE RD, 6 P.V.C WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT (STAGECOACH DR, TO HILLCREST DR,) ALSO STAGECOACH DR, 8"PVC MAIN REPLACEMENT FROM BISHOPS LD 6, RD, TO FHD[#] 760 AS BUILT TIE INTO EX, 6"D.I. VALVE MAPS GIS (MAPPIN **Inspector** Ap TOWNSHIP RANGE SECTION WORK ORDER NO. YEAR AERIAL Anony in the 15 G-19 T.17 R.10 5.18 الجالجة المراغب فا • • • • •



- VERIFICATION OF RD, ULT, EASE, REQ, *185 $^{-}$ NEW LOC, MM-3 INSTALL! I-8"X 8" M.J. X G"FLG, T EE I-6"FLG, X M.J. G.V. I-3-WAY F,H,D I-8" M.J. G.V. I-8" CAP RESTRAIN C ←BOOSTER NEW LOCI M-5 FUMP, (APPOX, LOC) - NEW CASING FOR WTR, SERVICES CONTACT RAMONIWOLF, CORP. (505) 920-4710 NEW-LOC, M-4 NEW LÓCI M-2 M.S-sr Orma MTR, LEGEND; \circ \odot NOTE / RETIRE W, M, CANS AND 4"ST MAIN ATEX, LOCATION, SANGRE DE CRISTO WATER SANTA FE Jafé de o 2015 CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS DATE 05/15 BY TITLE: BROWNELL HOWLAND AND TERRAL RD, WATER MAIN EXTENSION AND DATE _____ CK _ DATE _____ APP_ SHEET 4"STEEL RETIREMENT NO. YEAR AERIAL TOWNSHIP RANGE SECTION WORK ORDER NO. 15



SCALE	NORTH T = 20'	\$		
••••• ¥				
	SA	NGRE DE CR	ISTO WATER	
Sound Fe de s Sound Hundeling Sound Hundeling Standard Standard	2015	SANTA CONSTRUCT DE MONTE S, I, WATER MA D'- OF 4'D, I, P	fe TION DRAWIN(DATE <u>CE/LB</u> BY <u>AC</u> DATE <u>CK</u> DATE <u>APP</u> SHEET NO.
4 67 SS9 4	15 I-18	INSHIP RANGE SECTION	WORK ORDER NO.	13